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Name: Chevaun Varga
Job title: Care Assistant

Our care staff are the frontline troops

1n achieving our aim to make residents feel
comfortable, respected and well cared for
at all ttmes - In fact, to make them feel as
‘at home' as possible and allow them to
carry on with normol life We recognise
that the professionalism of our staff is the
most impoartant factor in creating a caring
environment which meets the needs and
expectations of residents and their famtlies
alike We want Southern Cross to be umiversally
recogrised for the huigh quality of our care
More than any other single factor, it 1s our
care staff who will achieve that for us




Our Services

We provide an
extensive range of
healthcare services,
including:

Operating Highlights

Nursing Care Homes

Nursing care homes offer an additional level of care to residentwal care homes
Qualified nurses provide 24 hour specialist nursing care for a range of clinical
needs Such services may tnvolve paliative care, dementia care, post-operative
care or respite care, all talored to the needs of the :individual

Residential Care Homes

Southern Cross offer a number of residental care hornes, which are designed
specifically to cater for the needs of those who find difficulty caring for
themselves at home, but wish to retain their iIndependence All Southern
Cross care hornes are staffed 24 hours o day by trained carers whose goal

15 to maintain the quality of life of those for whom they care

Specialist Care

Southern Cross offers care for people with a vanety of special needs in both
residential and nursing care homes Gur aim is to provide a safe and supportive
environment which s sensitive to the ever-changing needs of these residents

Financial Highlights

* Avalable beds increased to 38,603 at the perod ~ * Home EBITOAR before central costs decreased

end (2009 38,124 beds)

by 3 3% to £2809m (2009 £290 6m)

* Number of homes operated increased * Adjusted EBITDA of £534m (2009 £72 5m)

to 752 at the penod end (2009 744) .

Adjusted earnings per share for the peniod

* Average occupancy 84 8% (2009 877%), average of 765p (2009 1765p)
occupancy restated for marketable beds of 878% Net debt at period end reduced by £25 8m

* Average weekly fee increased by 2 2% to £73m

to £558 (2009 £546)

* Revision to existing banking arrangements,

* Signfficant progress made towards improving including an improvement in the fixed charge
overall service quality, with 82% (CQC suspended covenant from 123x to 11x

ratings nationally in June 2010} judged excellent

or good, up from 81% in March 2010, 77%
in September 2009 and 71% in May 2009

* Self funding admissions up from 17% of total
admissions in March 2010 to 20% in September 2010




Statutory Financial Highlights

* Revenue increased by 2 3% to £958 6m
(2009 £9371m)

* Operating loss £44 1m (2009 loss of £12 7m)
after a non-cash charge of £51 3m (2009 £51 8m)
for future mimmum lease increases under TAS17
and exceptional charges of £6 3m (2009 £Ni))
Excluding these charges, operating profit was
£135m (2009 £391m)

Our Locations

* Bosic loss per share for the period of 19 51p
(2009 1175p loss)

Notes
Mature occupancy excludes immature beds, newly developed homes
or refurbished homes which have been trading far less thon 12 menths

Home EBITDAR represents earrungs before interest, tax, depreaation amaortisatian,
toss on disposal of praperty, plont and equipment ond subsidiary undertokings,
impairment of freehold ossets held for sale, onerous contracts and related
impairments and rent

Adjusted EBITDA represents earmings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation,
loss on disposal of property, plont and equipment and subsidiary undertokings,
impairment of freehold assets, onerous contracts and releted impairments and
charges for future mimimurm rental increases and exceptional centrol costs

Ad)usted earnings per share 1s defined as earnings before charge for future
rurumnum rental increoses exceptional central costs enerous controcts and
related impairments loon arrangement fees wntten off, less on disposal of
property, plent and equipment and subsidiary undertakings end impairment
of freehold assets held for sale and the taxation impact therecf, divided by
the weighted averaoge number of shares

Al Lhe start of the finanaal period, the Group changed its internal reporting
cycles ond now reports on a calendar monthly basis (previously the Group reported
13 penods of 4 weeks) The results for the penod ended 30 September 2010 are
therefore for a penod of 368 days (2009 364 days)

Elderly Care Homes

Scotland and Northern Ireland

124 (2 active) homes

National
Support Centre
Darlington

North
214 (8 active) homes

Centrol
139 (21 active} homes

Head Office

Wokin
South 9

166 (18 active) homes

Active Care Homes
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Chairmdn’s
Statement

Ray Mites
Non-Executive Director and Chairman

In common with other sectors,
economic uncertainty was
prevalent during the period

under review. The period started
posttively before conditions became
more difficult as concerns grew
about the public deficit and future
government policy, including the
significant impact of likely cuts in
public spending to be announced
in the autumn Comprehensive
Spending Review. This was always
likely to have a substantial impact
on a business so reliant on Local
Authority funding.

Strategic Focus

During the penad, we maintamned a clear strategic focus on the
Group’s New Horizens change programmae the aim of which is

ta create an organisetion capable of previding universally trusted
levels of care based on the respect and digrity of the individual
and delivered in modern, high quality accommodation To some
extent, the operationol imperatives underlying this programme

- mproving the quality of our service delivery, investing in the
development of our people and managernent systems, and
capturing efficiency savings - have been given more immediacy
by the need to meet the challenges posed by the macro-econormic
factors impacting the Group

In common with other sectors, ecenomic uncertainty was
prevalent during the period under review The period started
positively before conditions became more difficult as concerns
grew about the public deficit and future government policy,
including the significant impact of likely cuis in public spending
to be announced In the auturmn Comprehensive Spending Review
This was atways likely to have a substantial impact on a business
so rehiant on Local Authonty funding

Against this backdrop, the Group experienced lower admissions
than seen for some tme, resulting in a fall n occupancy rates

In addition, fee negotiations with Local Authorities became more
difficult At the same time, cost pressures continued unabated
including the negative effects of rent escalation, nsing mimmurm
wage and higher utility costs

Against this background, the need for delivering the New Horizons

programme 15 clearer than ever Its main objectives are to

+ Enhance care delivery so that we are ultimately recognised
as the most trusted care home group In the UK

+ Increase the number of self-funding residents, thus reducing
our dependence on public funding and improving margins

» Improve efficiency so that everything 1s done in a better,
more effective and lower cost manner

+ Reorganise our management structure to create a flotter,
more responsive and accountable management team

In all of these we have made substantial progress during the
period but there s still much to be done

As announced on 25 Novernber 2010, the Board has been
opproached by other parties expressing potential interest in the
Group The approaches are still preliminary in nature, and the
Board continues to believe 1t to be in shareholders’ interests to
continue to hold exploratory discussions
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Financials

The macro-economic factors descnbed above combined to
negatively impact Group results and in March we lowered market
expectations for the full year outturn An adjusted EBITDA of £53 4m
was achieved compared with £72 5mn 2009 and £78 1m in 2008
Revenue grew by 2 3% to £958 6m from last year's £9371m Home
EBITDAR margin befare central costs has fallen by 17% to 29 3%
Occupancy in our mature homes fell from 88 4% to 86 1%

Net debt fell further by £25 8rn to £7 3m, a sigruficant achievernent
given the underlying trading environment The Group continues to
pursue its policy of further reducing debt and, therefore, the Board
has decided not to propose a final dvidend for FY2010

On 19 May, we announced we had consolidated the Group’s
banking arrangements into a revised amorttsing £50m revolving
credit facility (RCF) This faclity replaced all the Group’s existing
bank facilities and reduced the number of Syndicate lenders

from eight banks to twe [ am pleased to report that following
recent discussions with the Group's lenders, revisions to the
existing banking arrangements were agreed on 6 December 2010
The facility now comprises an amortising £45m RCF repayable in
September 2012, with the fixed charge covenant relaxed from
123xto11x

Industry Developments

In July 2010, the Government launched its Commission on the
Funding of Care and Support (known as the Dilnot Commission)
to examine the future prowsion and funding of care in the UK
Southern Cross fully supports the work of this important body
and made on early initiol submussion to 1t

We look forward to working with the Commuission to help it reach
a balanced view of how our society can provide affordable and
sustainable care capable of meeting the long-term needs of an
ageing population In particular, we believe the Commission should
play a critical role In encouraging Local Authonties, the NHS and
care providers such os ourselves to work together in developing
the services required to meet the future needs of an agemng
population Such collaboration should enhance the care delivered
to our elderly population, whilst generating better value for all
those who commusston care and moving us towards a system
which pays providers the true cost of care and allevrates current
imbalances in fee rates around the country

The NHS is changing, with GP consortia about to assume
responsibility for commussioning replacing PCTs In this regard

They will be responsible for organising healthcare and deaiding
which services to buy and from whom While remaining focused
on our core elderly care services, we will continue to respond
flexibly to changing market demands and take advantage of the
opportunities presented This will include offenng more specialised
care - for exarmple, in dementig, palliotive and step down care As
people’s perception of appropriate personalised care for ndividuals
evolves, this will also involve greater levels of day care provision,
outreach care in the community and short-term and respite care
as Local Authonues seek to encourage and support people to stay
w1 their own homes, with support, for as long as practicable
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At the Heart of the
Local Community

At Southern Cross, we encourage our residents to enjoy
as active and independent a lifestyle as possible Our
approach to care 1s based on treating every resident as an
indvidual, not only with regard to their specific care and
nursing requirements, but also with an eye to enabling
them to pursue the interests, hobbies and activities they
have always enjoyed and gained so much from

One area where this strategy 1s particularly appreciated
by residents is relations with the local community in which
they live There 1s no reason why they should not continue
to play a vatuable role in the life of their local community
- Just as they have always done That's why we encourage
residents ond their families to get invotved with a wide
number of community related activities These may
include, for example, raising money for the special baby
unit at the local hospital, or making a contnbution to a
local youth sports group or fundraising for local or national
charities The choice Is endless - and any funds raised

by our individual homes are topped up or matched by

a central donation from Southern Cross itself

We are proud of our residents’ record for helping a wide
range of deserving causes end see It as a vital part of them
remaining an active, motivated and appreciated section
of soclety

Of course, community engagement 15 a two-way process
As well as reaching out into local communities, we also
encourage others to see our care homes for what they are
- wvitally important local amenities and vibrant communities
inthemselves Residents can benefit enormously from
regular visits from, for example, local school children and
theatre groups or others such as crafts and pet therapy
speciabsts In this way, as wide a range of people as
possible can see that they have a role to play in the
well-being of elderly people in our communities
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Chairman’s Statement
(continued)

Notwithstanding, we see difficult
trading conditions in the short
term, we remain as determined
as ever to forge ahead with

our change programme which
we confidently expect to deliver
long-term, industry-leading
levels of quality and service.

Name: Tom Spence
Job title; Activities Co-ordinator

Enabling our residents to be as physically
and mentally active as they want to be1s a
cornerstone of our holistic appreach to care
In each of our regions, we have members of
staff, such as Tom, whose role 1s to ensure
that residents have access to a wide range
of activities caterning to as many tastes,
abilities and hobbies os possible These can
range from ardenm? to fundraising for
worthylocal causes, from craftwork to
musical and theatrical performances,

frorn games such as carpet bowls to
outings to local places of interest

Landlords

Duning the penod, the Group engaged Morgan Stanley to review
its lease arrongements with landlords All leases are subject to
escalation clauses Whilst many are fixed, a significant number
of rents are tied to RPI, resulting in rents currently rising faster
than the fees we charge This work 1s ongoing and the Group has
entered into a dialogue with some of its landlords to explore ways
in which rents might be restructured to provide greater stability
and a stronger covenant

People

The Group remains a sigrificant employer with a dedicated team
of over 43,000 people working in homes across the UK 1 never
fail to be impressed by the commitment and expertise of our
staff, so often displayed in testing circumstances For most,
their job 1s more than a way of earming a bving -1t 15 a vocation
Increasingly, we seek ta recognise this in our camprehensive
training programmes and remuneration packages Our people
are one of the reasons that 1 am optiristic about the future
On behalf of the Board, ! thank colleagues threughout the
business for their outstanding contnbution in a difficult year

In August, Irene Gray joined the company as Director of Care
This 1s an important milestone Her appomtment is a clear
demonstration of the Group’s commitment to take the tead
in cimcal governance and deliver dependable high quality
services which are respected by those who commission care
as well as by residents and ther farmilies

Notwithstanding, we see difficuit trading conditions in the short
term, we remain as determined as ever to forge ahead with

our change programme which we confidently expect to deliver
long-term, industry-leading levels of quality and service This wall
put Southern Cross In a strong position to take advantage of the
demographic trends that continue to indicate a longer-term
increase In average age and demand for elderly care services

Ray Miles
Chairman
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Questions and Answers from Irene Gray
— our new Director of Care

Without question, my priority is
to develop a Strategy for Care
which is enthusiastically adopted
and ‘owned’ by all our staff and
which clearly sets out our route
towards excellence in providing
care services.

Q You recently joined Southern Cross after a coreer spent
in the NHS What persuaded you to join the company?

A Throughout my career, my primary clinical interest has always
been the care of the elderly After 38 yearsinthe NHSasa
registered nurse, including 24 years as an executive, I was looking
for an opportunity which would draw on my experience and where
I could make a reol difference 1was impressed by Southern Cross’
challenging journey to put care at the heart of everything they do
and to support and influence the notional agenda As we care for
some of the most vulnerable people in society, it 15 cntical that care
providers have the wvision and the ability to deliver the best possible
stondards To be able to lead on developments in care 1s quite
clearly o privilege

@ What do you see as the particutar challenges facing the
industry?

A With an expanding elderly populatton and tight Local Authority
budgets, the most cbvious challenge 1s how to provide levels of
personal care which meet the expectations and needs of current
and future generations whilst, at the same time, making sure that
care remains offordable and of the highest quality

Q What are the man prionities facing Southern Cross?

A Last year, we launched our New Horizons change programme
which puts quality of care nght at the heart of everything we do

The airmos simply to make ours the most trusted and sought ofter
care experience In the country Southern Cross 1s aiming to become
the industry benchmark for excellence in care provision That means
creating o Strategy for Care which demonstrably meets the needs
of all our residents and provides outstanding and affordable
personalised care
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Success in delivering our Strategy for Care will lead to Southern
Cross becoming a magnet for the hughest calibre of stoffin the
industry Throughout their career, we aim to offer all our dedicated
staff continuous, In-post training and personal development

This approach will serve to improve Job satisfaction and reduce
staff turnover

Q What do you see as your own man goal for the coming year?

A Without question, my priority is to develop a Strateqy for Care
which 1s enthusiastically adopted and ‘owned’ by all our staff and
which clearly sets out our route towards excellence in providing
care services The Strategy will deliver a frameweork to strengthen
and improve standards in care practices and make significant
inroads to redesignung the way we deliver Dementia Care and
End of Life Care A vital part of this — and 1t 15 central to the New
Hoerizons programme - will be to investin the fabric and facilities
in each of our homes over a planned period of time, and to
improve the quality rating of all homes across the Group

Q Do you believe that the Group can achieve its objective of
becoming the most trusted care provider in the UK?

A Yes, I do Everything we do is focused on continuously
improving the quality of care we offer our residents and their
families The quality of the care we provide depends on the quality
and motivotion of the staff in our homes We want the best staff
in the profession, so training will continue to be a prime focus
New Horizons is already delivering positive results and 1 have

no doubt thot we can achieve our goals We want our name to

be synonymous with the highest levels of care quality available
anywhere This objective 1s not out of reach we simply need to
recogrise the challenges, agree cur approach and, week in, week
out, focus on delivering continuous improverment But success will
not come overmght and our prionty 15 to ensure that progress is
sustainable and therefore delivery must be paced That s why the
New Hornzens programme 15 planned to extend over several years

Q. How will you know that you have been successful?

A. There are four ways in which we will know First and foremost,
it will be evident in the number of our homes rated as Good

and Excellent Secondly, partnerships will be strengthened with
our commussioners and other key stakeholders and they will
demonstrably support and engage with us in our future plans
Thirdly, staff turnover, se often a negative factor In mantaining
high quality care services, will reduce And finally, our cccupancy
levets will iImprove as our name becornes synonymous with
excellence In addition to that, of course, we will know simply
because our residents and therr familbies will tell us how we

are doing

Q What s your vision of future care provision?

A The service of the future will undoubtedly took and feel different
Most importantly, it will be of a uniformly hugh quatity, more
responsive to the needs of society and always open to further
change in order to meet the needs of future generations
Improvements will come through the profession’s responsiveness

to the needs of the elderly communities we serve, with greater
rehabilitation and domiciliary support allowing elderly people to stay
longer in therr own homes One of the highest expectations I have 15
to see significant improverments in the care of people with dementia

Above all, the service of the future will be based on indmidualised
care Qur ability to deliver the full range of personal care services to
the people who need them will be judged on our ability to do so In
away which, at all times, respects and preserves the digrity of the
peaple who rely on what we do
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Chief Executive’s
Statement

Jamie Buchan
Chief Executive

My priorities for the business

are as follows:

- Improve care delivery to our
residents in a measurable
and sustainable way.

« Grow our share of dementiaq,
end of life and ‘step down’
care markets.

« Increase the number of self
funding and co-paying residents.

» Achieve real reductions in cost
to serve.

» [nvest in our care homes and
in the staff who deliver care.

Overview

During the peniod, we have made significant progress towards
transforming the business such that, by 2015, we become
recognrised as providing the most trusted and sought after care
expernience In the UK In pursurt of this aim we successfully
completed the first phase of our nternal change prograrmme,
New Honizons, which 1 introduced in last year’s report and for
which the following objectives {end calendar year 2011) have
been communicated
= Improving service quolity such that at least 85% of our
homes are externally jJudged good or excellent
+  Adding 1,200 self funding residents, thereby raising therr
proportion of total residents to 22%
Reducing Home Manager turnover to 22% per annum
Re-engineering the Group’s cost structure to achieve savings
of at least 1% of revenue

Overall we believe that the New Hornizons programme will generate
between £15-£20m of annualised value to the business by the end
of 2011 together with a transformed operational capability

Name: Harry Carson
Job title: Catering Manager

If an army marches on its stomach, then the
same can be said of residents 1n care homes!
A balanced, healthy diet 1s absolutely vital for
people who are perhaps no longer as active as
they once were Behind the scenes, an army of
catering managers such as Harry ensure that
our residents up and down the country receive
three good square meals every day Catenng
as far as possible to Individua! preferences and
requirements, Harry works closely with Southern
Cross’ dedicated experts to ensure that the
medals we serve are nutntrous, appetising and
well cooked
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Chief Executive’s Statement
(continued)

New Horizons

1 Orgamisation Structure

In arder to enable the business to meet its objectives,
between February and July of this year, we undertook a major
re-organisation of our field operations and central functrons
We de-layered our operations function from seven to four
management levels, exiting 38% of operations staff above
Home Manager level and invested the savings In

+ Decentralising operations to four P&L accountable regions
+ Establishing a care function

» Establishing a full human resources function

= Establishing a sales capability

Whilst the reorgarusation has not been without its challenges,

It 1s already clear that the new structure has led to improved core
quabty (lower number of embargoed homes) and a better sales
mix (more self funders) whilst empowering Home Managers to
develop their businesses for the benefit of the commurnities which
they serve

Regional Business Units

Our four new Regienal Directors have fully established therr
regional teams in which 33 Area Managers, each with a team

of c21 Home Managers, play the central role Within each areq,
Horme Managers are further supported by a local team of subject
matter experts covering people management, tratning, sales
development and business analysis In addition, each Area
Manager team is supporied by a dedicated Care Quality Adwisor
responsible for raising standards of care

Care Function

Our avernding obligation and commitrment 1s to deliver excellent,
affordable, personalised care to our residents and we have made
strong progress in the creation of a care function within the Group
In February we created over sixty new, field-based, roles including
a national team of Service Quality Inspectors who inspect every
one of the Group’s homes on o risk-assessed frequency agamst

a set of demanding standards based on individual resident
outcomes In August, the Group announced the appointment

of Professor Irene Gray to lead the function as Director of Care
Irene's job 1s to raise standards of care and clinical governance
across the portfolio and to act as a champien for the development
of the nursing and care profession within Southern Cross

A revised Clinical Governance system has also been introduced
to provide assurance over standards New systems are being
deployed to analyse key care data with the objective of
establishing a set of iIndicators which wilt allow the Group to
predict homes which are failing and, consequently, to adopt
an early Intervention approach

We have continued to make good progress against our target

for improving the quality of care delivered in our homes The table
below shows that the number of homes in England judged by

the external regulatar as Good or Excellent had nsen 5% to 82%
by Q3 of 2010 Full year figures are not available as the Care Quality
Comrmission discontinued their star rating system in June The
Group 1s confident however that its internal quality inspection
process will continue to drive standards up whilst reducing the
number of poor and adequate hormes

SCH SCH

2010 2009

Q3 Full

CQC Sconng™ (Actucl) (Actual)
Good/Excellent 82% 77%
Poor/Adequate 18% 23%

*t CQC no longer update their quality scores following the implementation of the
new standards under the Health and Sociol Core Act 2008

People Management

Ours 15 a people business and I am very pleased indeed with

the progress which has been made in delivering a comprehensive
set of people management services to our care homes

During the peniod, the Group introduced a full suite of processes
covering staff recruitment, Induction, performance appraisal and
traiming A national HR support hub was created to act as a one
stop shop for all internal people processes and enquirnies covering
our 43,000 staff In addition, @ national training organisation,
embedded within our Regional Business Units, has been created
to act as the delivery vehicle for statutory, clinical and management
training across all staff groups In particular, our Home Managers
have received training In business management and finance,
people managernent and sales which has already paid dividends
in reducing staff turnover by 3% and In Increasing the numbers
of self funding residents within our hornes Overall I am confident
that an improved level of staff engagement has been achieved

We are committed to further developing and refining traiming
opportunities for everybody in the business Having the best traned
staff in the sector 1s not only the nght and responsible thing to do
for our people, it 15 absclutely central to our business mode!l high job
satisfaction and motivation levels will lead directly to better quality
service delivery which will enhance our reputation




11/ Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC
Annual Report and Accounts 2010
Business Review

During the period the Group invested in the creation of a hurnan
resources database which will go live in early 2011 and which will
capture oll stoff records, thereby enabling a wide range of people
management and efficiency programmes to be undertaken

A Time ond Attendance rostering system s being rolted out across
all homes Indications from the first 60 homes to use this system
are that labour costs are reduced by more than 1% as a result

of greater control and accuracy of rostering The system will also
enable the set up of internal staff bank groups which the Group
betieves will lead to a reduction in agency costs

Sales

One of the prionties we hove set ourselves 1s to improve the
Group's penetration of the self funding market During the period,
the average weekly fee for self funding residents was £668 versus
£534 for residents whose care was funded by Local Authorities
The Group has developed a new sales process supported by an
on-line enquiry management systemn and a small national sales
cail centre Following a successful pilot in the South of England,
which showed an increase in self funder admussions of up to
50%, 250 Home Managers across the UK have been fully trained
in our new sales process In order to support Home Managers

in achweving sales targets we recruited experienced saoles
development professtonals within each Regional Business Unit

In addition, the Group's website has been updated with improved
functionality and an enhanced ability to drive sales enquires

2 Segmentation and Cost Management

During the period we introduced an internal business segmentation
rmodel in order to help drive performance, simplify management
communication and inform capital investment decisions

Each home has been classified within one of five segments

according to its sales opportunity and cost structure Each segment

has distinct operating characterstics and rmargin potential

+ ‘Premium’ capable of over 60% of self funder penetration
at premiurm prices

+ ‘Plus’ capable of over 30% self funder penetration

= ‘LA Major. large, cost efficient homes focused on local
authority provision

* ‘LA Minor: less efficient homes focused on local
authority provision

= ‘Cosy’ small {less than 35 bed) homes

In turn, homes are olso accorded the following status
+ ‘Mover’ capable of moving into a more attractive segment
» ‘Improver’ capable of improvement within the

existing segment

‘Trend' operating at an acceptable level within the

existing segment

The Group believes that approximately 200 homes can be
positioned in the ‘premum’ and ‘plus’ segments and that
over 300 hormes have ‘mover’ or ‘“mpraver’ potential

In May of this year, each Area Manager used the segmentation
model n prepanng area business pians colloboratively with Home
Managers This process has further enabled the development of
simple, focused plans for each home and improved stewardship

During the period the Group invested £30 3m in mamtaining

and improving the portfolio, mere than meeting 1ts commitment
from last year A Director of Property Services was hired to lead
the investment programme and to ensure that its execution
optimised returns according to the sagmentotion methodology

Progress has been made in re-engineering the cost base The
Group began a comprehensive review of central procurement

and this work 1s two thirds complete wath approximately £2m

of annualised savings already captured in telecommunications,
utility supply and food A review has also been undertaken in
repairs, renewals and improvements where the group spends
approximately £70m per annum {labour and materials} As aresult
I am very pleosed to announce the appointment of Bovis Lend
Lease as our strategic partner for the prowvision of maintenance
and refurbishment services across our national network of 752
homes We believe the partnership with Bowis Lend Lease will

lead to improved standards of service to our home management
teams and therefore our residents, greater operational integrity
and a more efficient use of the Group’s cash rescurces The Group
1s also In the process of reviewing its catering arrangements where it
spends c£80m per annum (labour and matenals) in order to improve
both the quality and cost effectiveness of this important service

Industry

During the period, the increase In fees paid by local authonty
comirmussioners fell matenally below the rate of inflation In addition,
older people placed into the Group’s care are increasingly frail

on adrmission and have Increasingly acute needs, often involving
dementia, which require higher levels of personal attention by

our nurses and carers

The core industry 1s largely dependent on state funding through
either Local Authorities or the National Health Service It 1s our
view that this funding model 1s not sustamnable in the future os
the proportion of elderly people with acute care needs continues
to increase The Group has recognised this in its twin objectives of
improving standards of care and in attracting a higher proportion
of self-funding and co-paying residents That said, the provision
of services to public commissioners will remain our key market
for some considerable time and consequently we have actively
raised our industry profite during the lead in to the Government's
Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR)
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Chief Executive’s Statement
(continued)

The Group welcomes the
setting up of the Dilnot
Commission into the
funding of long-term care.

Name: Clare Macpherson
Job title: Dining Room Assistant

For people of all ages, a good meal can

often be the highlight of the day Clare and

her colleaguesknow this and aim to ensure
that for the residents in their care, meal times
are something to be looked forward to Whether
It’s assisting people in need of a helrmg hand or
Just making sure that meals are well presented
and rucely served, our dining room assistants
play a wital role in the hoppiness of our homes
and in the health of all of our residents

Our objective In engaging with government was to gain

recognition of the proper economic and social value of care

services, such as those delivered by the Group To that end,

the Group highlighted

*  The value for money provided by residentiol care versus
the true cost of providing other forms of care, for example
‘extra care’ and domiciliory care

+  Continued inefficient local authority provision and
commissioning conflict

+ The opportunity for care homes to prowide a wider range
of services to the NHS ot significantly lower cost

The outcome of the CSR was disappointing Local Authorities

face reductions in their budgets of 26% over the four years
commencing Apnl 2011 and Soaal Care 1s not ning fenced We remain
deeply concerned that Local Authonties will reduce expenditure

on care for older people by increasing eligibility criteniq, thereby
leaving vulnerable people without the access to appropnate forms
of care, and by depressing fees to increasingly unsustainable levels

The Group welcomes the setting up of the Dilnot Commussion
into the funding of long term care This development gives
the industry in general the opportunity to influence the future
funding of appropriate elderly care prowision in the UK and to
debate the benefits of different models of care provision with
a clear understanding of the true costs of each madel We will
continue to work closely with the Commussion which will report
next summer

Portfolio

Southern Cross operates 752 homes across the UK During the penod
the Group added 479 new beds At the beginning of FY2011, the
Group took the decision to re-categorise 1,303 rooms, previously
marketed as twin bedded rooms, for single occupancy at prermium
rates This will reduce the nurber of available beds being marketed
across the Group to 37,300, representing a 10 2% share of the UK
market for independently provided residential care (Source Laing
& Buisson)

Caning for Older People

Historically, the Group has operated under two brands, Southern
Cross Healthcare and Ashbourne Following the work done on
internal business segrmentation and the classification of homes
into five segments (Prermium, Plus, LA Major, LA Minor, and Cosy)
the histortcal classification under Southern Cross and Ashbourne
has been discontinued

The Group 1s currently undertaking a major review of its elderly
care marketing proposition and branding

Specialist Services

Active Care

Active Care 15 one of the country’s largest independent mental
health and learring disability care providers, operating 49 homes
and 930 beds In the period under review, Active Care generated
revenue of £41 9m (2009 £43 8m) a decrease of 4 3%, due primarty
to the closure of Abbeydale It attracted average weekly fees of
£1,086 (2009 £1,097)
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Chief Executive’s Statement
(continued)

Operating Performance

Dunng the period, the macro-economic cimate has matenally
worsened leading directly to a like for like decline in mature
occuponcy of 2 3% In particular, the Group experienced

a reduction in Local Authority admussions in the second half
of the penod in contrast to the recovery normally seen over
the summer months

The average Local Authonty settlement dunng the peniod
was 1 3% versus RP1 of 4 4% We continued to see restrictions
on eligibility critenia and moverment towards the provision

of domiciiary care to elderly people with acute social needs

Overall average weekly fees increased by a net 2 2%, while

home payroll costs increased by 3 4% (excluding the additional

4 days In the current penod of account) and home running costs
increased by 5 2% The results were negatively mpacted by falling
occupancy Average occupancy in mature homes fell by 2 3%

to 86 1%, although the market generally also fell The net effect
was that operating margin reduced by 1 7% to 29 3%

The operating performance 1s summarised below

H1 H2 Total

2010 2010 2010

£Em £m £'m

Revenue 4807 4779 9586
Home EBITDAR before central costs 140 6 1403 2809
Margin % 292% 294% 293%
Rent - charge for amounts currently payable 97 7 993 1970
Rent cover - times 144 141 143
Adjusted EBITDA 280 254 534
Adpusted EBITDA profile 52 4% 476%  100%
Average mature occupancy % 86 %% 853% 861%

Fee Rates

In the penod under review, the Group achieved a net increase

in average weekly fee rotes of 2 2% to £558 (2009 £546) Fees
charged to private clients were reviewed and an overall increase
of 3 7% was agreed, effective from February 2010 Over the pertod,
Local Authority fee rate increases differed from Authority to
Authonty In England, an average increase of 1 0% was achieved,
while in Scotland and Northern Irelond the increese was 2% while
for Wales it was 1 6%, resulting in an overall average increase

of 13%

People

As [ wrote last year in my first report as Chief Executive,

1 am constantly struck as I go round the business by the
professionalism, enthusiosm and dedication of colleagues
throughout the country Our people - Home Managers, Carers,
Nurses, Chefs, Housekeepers, Administrators and Maintenance
Staff - take the lead in fostering relationships with our residents,
therr farmilies and the local community Along with regional and
head office staff, they are our route to achieving our ambition
to deliver the highest levels of care in the UK They are wital to
our success Once again, [ am delighted to express my thanks
to all of them for the contribution they make to the business

Outlook

The long term demaographics for our business remain positive and
we are clear that significant opporturities exist for the Group in the
provision of dementia and end of life services In addition we are
developing a range of step down and re-ablement services which
we believe will be attractive to NHS commussioners

In the short term however, we will face continued pressure on
accupancy levels and on margin as a direct consequence of Local
Authority budget reductions and the lack of current defirition
from central government on long term funding for the care of
older people

Despite these challenges, the Group enters 2011 with a very clear
sense of purpose 1Inits first year, the achievement of the New
Horizons Programme has been to lay the foundations for turning
Southern Cross into a significantly mproved national operator of
care hormes As we enter the second year of the programme we
now have the management capability to create benefit in the
following three areas

*  Further improvernent in care standards

+ Copture of a luigher margin resident rmix

+  Achievement of further cost efficiencies

To that extent [ believe that we are creating a valuable operating
brand which will stand the company in very good stead for the future

Jamie Buchan
Chief Executive

Name: Betty Hannah

Job title: Domestic Supervisor

More often than not it's the front line nursing
staff who stea! the imelight in care homes
But without the behind-the-scenes work carried
out by dedicated staff ike Betty, every care
home 1n the country would very soon gnind
tc a halt We have them to thank for the
cleanliness and hygiene of residents’ private
rooms as well as all the public spaces inside
our homes And with almost 33,000 residents
in 752 homes the length and breadth of the
country, it 1s impossible to overstate the scale
of the daily laundry operation needed to keep
things going smoothty
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Financial Review

Richard Midmer
Group Finance Director

Revenue increased by £21.5m
to £958.6m (2009: £937.1m),
an increase of 2.3%.

Revenue Statement

At the start of the financiol persod, the Group changed its internal
reporting cycles and now reports on a calendar monthly basis
{previously the Group reported 13 penods of 4 weeks) The results
for the penod ended 30 September 2010 are therefore for a period
of 368 days (2009 364 doys)

The Group’s operating performance 1s summarised n the
following table

2010 2009
£'m £'m
Revenue 9586 9371
Home EBITDAR before central costs 2809 2906
Home EBITDAR margin (%} 2913 310
Adjusted EBITDA before exceptional central costs
and charge for future minimum rental increases 534 725
Operating loss (44 1) (127)
Loss before toxation {47 &) (198)
Average nurnber of avallable beds 38,531 37,664
Cash generated from operating octivities 334 875

Revenue

As at the period end, the Group had increased the number of
available beds by 479 {1 3%) to 38,603 (2009 38,124) The growth
was attrnibutable to the completion of two in-house developrments
(156 beds), an extension to an existing home (23 beds} and the
gequisitions of four leasehald homes (300 beds)

The averoge number of available beds increased by 867 (2 3%)
during the period, to 38,531 (2005 37,664}

Revenue increased by £21 5m to £958 6m (2009 £9371rmn),

an increase of 2 3% Excluding the additional 4 days in the current
penod of account, revenue increased by £11 2m The increase

in revenue Is due to the net impact of fee increases, bemng 2 5%
during the pencd and contrnbuting edditional revenue of £23 8m,
the impact of ocquisitions made in the prior and current period
which contributed £12 7m, offset by a reduction in average
occupancy of £22 4m and mix effects of £2 9m Overall the
overoge weekly fee rate increosed by anet 2 2%

Home Operating Costs

Home payrolt costs increased £24 1m frorm £533 7rn to £557 8,

of which £5 9rmwas due to the odditionat 4 days in the current
period of account and £8 8m waos attributable to acguisitions made
in the current and prior period Excluding these, home payroll costs
increased by £9 4m, driven pnimarily by woge mcreases of 1 7%
effective in October 2009

Home running costs for the current penod were 12 5% of revenue
(2005 12 0%}, in absolute terms, excluding the additional 4 days
in the current penod of account, home running costs increased
by £59m (5 2%) The increase was driven by cost of inflation of
3% {£3 4m) and increases in planned repairs and maintenance
(£2 5m)
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Rent

The rent charge for the period, including the non-cash charge
of £51 3m (2009 £51 8m) under 1AS17, was £248 3m (2009
£239 1m} Excluding the non-cash charge and the additional

4 days in the current penod of account, the rental charge
increased by £7 7m The increase was drven by new leases
entered into {£3 3m), leases with average fixed increases of

2 7% {£3 Om), leases with RPI linked average increases of 2 5%
(£10m) and leases subject to S yearly increases (£0 4m)

Central Costs

Total central costs, ncluding £6 3m in respect of exceptional central
costs, were £36 8m Excluding exceptional central costs and costs
for the 4 additional days in the current period of account, central
costs decreased by £0 7m As a percentage of revenue, central costs
(excluding exceptiongl central costs) equated to 3 2% (2009 3 3%)

Exceptional Central Costs

Exceptional central costs relate to the internal change programme
‘New Horizons’ and other exceptional costs During the period

£5 3m was Incurred in respect of New Horizons The total costs

of the programme are expected to be £6m with the majornty

of the remaining costs anticipated to be incurred during the first
half of FY2011 Other exceptional centrol costs totalled £1 Om,
the mgjority of which related to costs incurred in respect of o review
of the Group’s cperating lease portfolio

Segmental Results

The Group continued to have two distinct segments within its
operations, namely Elderly Care (which incorporates Southern
Cross Healthcare and Ashbourne Senior Living) and Specialist
(being the Actve Care Partnership business)

Elderly Care

Average available beds within the Elderly Care portfolto increased
by 867 to 37,601 (2009 36,734) The total number of available beds
within the Elderly Care portfolio at the penod end was 37,673

(2009 37,195)

Fee revenue in the Elderly Care segment increased by £23 4m

(2 6%} to £916 7m, excluding the additional 4 days in the current
pertod of account, revenue Increased by £13 Sm The key driver

of revenue growth was the increase in average weekly fee (£23 3m)
and acquisitions completed in the prior and current period (£12 7m)
These increases were offset by a reduction in occupancy (£20 4my)
and mix effects (£2 1m)

Total Home EBITDAR before central costs decreased by £9 7m
(3 5%) to £269 6m Home EBITDAR margin before central costs
for Elderly Care reduced to 29 4% (2009 31 3%)

Specialist Care

Available beds in the specialist segment remained at 930 and
included 53 beds in respect of Abbeydale, a centre that was closed
dunng the period and which will re-open durning FY2011 under the
Elderly Care segment

During the period, revenues in the Specialist segment decreased by
£19m (4 3%) to £41 9m (2009 £43 8m) due pnmanly to the closure
of Abbeydale

Home EBITDAR before central costs for the peried remarned at
£11 3 with Home EBITDAR morgin before central costs increasmg
from 25 8% to 270%

EBITDA

Loss before interest, tax, depreaiation and amortisation, loss

on disposal of property, plant and equipment and subsidiary
undertakings, onerous contracts and related imparments, and
impairment of freehold assets held for sale (‘EBITDA) for the
Group decreased by £24 9m toa £4 2m loss (2009 £20 7m profit)
Excluding the impact of future minimum rental increases under
1A5 17 and exceptional central costs, adjusted EBITDA decreased
by £19 1m (26 3%] to £53 4m

Depreciation

Depreciation has increased from £21 6rm tn 2009 to £27 1m in the
current penad, reflecting the hugher spend incurred during the prior
perod

Disposal of Freehold Assets

During the penod, the Group disposed of freehold assets for a net
cash consideration totalling £31 2m The reloted ossets had a net
book value of £31 4m, resulting in a loss on disposal of £0 2m
Further freehold assets were sold for deferred consideration of
£0 6m, being equal te the book value of the assets

During the penod, the Directors reviewed the carrying value of the
Group’s freehold properties Following this review, a number of
properties were found to have far values tower than their carrying
value As a result, the carrying value of the related freeholds has
been written down by £1 1m

Onercus Contracts and Related Impairments

During the pencd, management took the decision to close two
of the Graup’s homes As previously reported, Abbeydale, an
independent hospitat located in North London, was closed in
the first half of the financial period Ferngrove, a home located
In Lancashire, was closed in Sepiember 2010 due to the building
not meeting the standard required by the Group As a result

of these decisions an onerous contract charge of £11 5m has
been recognised in the period and included £0 9m of related
imparment charges
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Financial Review
(continued)

Net Finance Costs

The net financing costs for the penod amounted to £3 3m
(2009 £71m), representing o decrease of £3 8m due to lower
levets of debt across the period

Included withuin net finance costs are interest charges of £2 2m
(2009 £6 Om)n relotion to Interest payable en bank borrowings
and amortisation of loan arrangement fees of £1 1m (2009

£07m} The lower interest charge was due to lower levels of debt
held by the Group, with net debt at 30 September 2010 of £7 3m
(2009 £331m) Amortisation of loan arrangement fees increased
as a result of costs associated with the consolidation of the Group's
banking facilities, which was completed on 18 May 2010

Taxatien

The tax credit on earnings befare taxation of £10 7m (2009 £2 3m
charge), consists of a current, tax credit of £0 3m and a deferred tax
credit of £10 4m, and represents a headline rate of 22 6% (2009
11 6% negative) The deferred tax credit includes a current pencd
credit of £8 2m, a prior period credit of £3 1m and a charge of

£0 9m attributable to a change in the rate of taxation The current
period deferred tox credit s significontly impacted by £8 Om of
trading losses arnising in the period which cannot be recogrised
due to the uncertainty of their future economic benefit This 1s
offset by o £5 3m credit (of which £2 5m relates to prior periods)

Furthermore, the current period tax credit 18 wmpacted by

future minimum rental increases, onerous contracts and related
imparrrnents, impairment charges of freehold assets held for sale,
losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment and subsidiary
undertakings and the rate change on the recagmtion of deferred
tax assets from 28% to 27% The corporation tax rate change Is
effective from Apnl 2011 and it 1s anticipated that oll deferred tax
assets will reverse after this date

The reconciliation below shows the effective rate of tax after
consideration of the above items

Taxauon

credit/

{charge)

£€m £m

Loss before taxation (47 4) 107

Future mimimum rental increases 513 {14 3)

Onerous contracts and reloted impacirments 115 (32

Impatrment of freehold assets held for sale 11 -
Loss on disposal of property, plont and equipment

and subsidiary undertakings 02 -

Trading losses ansing not recognised - 80

Impact of prior period items - (34}

Other - (28)

Rate chonge on deferred tax ossets - 09

Total 167 (4 1)

After consideration of the above items, the current tax charge
of £4 1m represents an effective tax rate of 24 6% (2009 25 8%)
before charges for future minimum rental increases, onerous
contracts and related impairments, losses on disposal and
impairment charges

The Group expects the effective future tax rate to rematn
at or slightly below the standard rate of corporation tax
in future periods

Dividends

Total dvidends paid during the penod amounted to £Ni (2009
£NIl} and the Directors have decided not to recommend a final
dreidend for the period ended 30 September 2010

Loss per Share

The loss per share for the period was 19 51p {2009 loss of 11 75p}
Earnings per share for the period befare future minimum rentat
increase charges, exceptional central costs and the taxation
impact thereof, was 2 55p (2009 8 08p), a decrease of 68%
Excluding the impact of losses recogmsed in respect of freehold
properties, impairment charges and charges in respect of enerous
contracts and related impairments, adjusted earnings per share
was 765p (2009 17 65p)

Balance Sheet

Non-current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment increased from £111 4m to
£118 4m due to the net impact of additions to property, plant
and equipment of £35 8m, offset by depreciation charges of
£27 1m, and other gsset disposals and impairments of £1 7m

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets have increased by £10 5m from £14 7m
to £25 2m The movement is pnmanly due to the increose
in capitol allowances available to the Group

Property Assets Held for Sale

At the start of the current period, the Group held 20 freehold property
assets for resale with a value totalling £46 5m During the period,

6 were disposed of with a value of £31 4m Following a review by
the Directors of the carrying values of the remaming 14 freehold
property assets held for sale, an impairment charge of £1 1m

was made

The property assets held for sale at the peried end relate to
14 freehold properties amounting to £14 O, all of which are
being actively marketed
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Cash Flow
2010 2009
£'m f'm
Cash ftows from operations 334 875
Net interest and taxation 37N 33
Investing activities 39 (256)
Financing activitres (564) (356)
Net {decrease}/increase in cash (30 6) 296

Net decrease in cash during the penod was £30 6rm (2009 £29 6m
increase), with cash inflow from operations of £33 4m (2009 £87 5m)
Cash inflow from operations represents a cash conversion ratio of
Adjusted EBITDA, after exceptional items, of 74 3% (2009 120 7%)
The current period cash conversion ratio has been reduced due te
the impact of 5 quarterly rent payments (£14 6m) being made as
a result of the extended period Excluding the impact of these items,
the cash conversion ratio, after exceptional items, was 102%

Finance charges paid during the period amounted to £3 7m

(2009 £13 1m) and included £1 1m relating to loan arrangement
fees and costs in respect of the consolidotion of the Group's
banking faciliies m May The remaning payments relate to
standard charges incurred in accordance with the Group's banking
facilities Tax payments during the penod totalled £0 2m (2009
£15 6rm repayment) and related to prior periods

Net cash outflow from investing activities amounted to £3 9m
(2009 £256m) Included within net cash outflow from investing
activities are purchase of property, plant and equipment of £35 1m
and recepts from the sale of subsidiary undertakings and the sale
of property, plant and equipment and other assets of £25 Smand
£5 7m respectively

Purchase of property, plant and equipment totalled £35 1m and
included £2 1m of development expenditure, £30 3m of
maintenance and improvernent capex on the Group’s homes and
other capital expenditure of £2 7m

The net cash used in financing actimties for the period amounted
to £56 4m (2009 £35 6m) and included net repayment of bank
borrowings totalling £55 8m

Net Debt and Financing

During the period, the Group's net debt reduced by £25 8m to
£73m (2009 £33 1m) with bank borrowings reducing by a net

£55 8m On 18 May 2010 the Group consolidated 1ts existing
banking arrangements into a revised £50m revelving credit faality
Interest on drown amounts 1s charged at margins between 2 75%
and 3 25% above LIBOR At 30 September 2010, the Group had
loans of £75m drawn on the facility

As at the period end, the Group had committed bank facilities of
£50m, against which it had loans drawn of £7 5m, finance lease
obligations of £1 Om ond guarontees 1ssued of £11 8m, leaving
£29 7m of undrawn facilites

The Group holds agreements to imit its exposure to interest rate
movements At the period end, the Group had £13 6m of nterest
rate caps outstanding at & 62% and £21 O0m of interest rate collors
outstanding with cap rates of 4 50% and floors of 2 57% The
notionat amount hedged under these agreements reduces over
their term and both expire on 30 June 2011

Following recent discussions with the Group’s lenders, revisions

to the existing banking arrangements were agreed on 6 Decermnber
2010 The Group’s facility now compnses an amortising £45m

RCF repayable in September 2012, with the fixed charge covenant
relaxed from 1 23x to 1 1x The first amortisation, of £3 3m, takes
place on 1 October 2011

Available Beds )

Following a review of double accupancy rooms, the Group has
reclassified 1,303 rooms as single occupancy As at the beginning
of FY11, this will have the net impact of reducing the number of
available beds across the Group by 1,303 beds to 37,300 For FY10,
this amendment to available beds would have had the effect of
increasing average occupancy for the Group from 84 8% to 87 8%

Richard Midmer
Group Finance Director
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Corporate Social
Responsibility

The Group's CSR objective remains unchanged We want to deliver
sustainable smprovernents in our business 1 a way that aligns, as far
as 1s passible, our core business needs with the wider interests and
concerns of our stakeholders We understand that alongside the
business's econornic drivers we have a responsibility for improving
the lives of our residents, therr families, our staff and the wider

local community

Marketplace

Care Standards and Quality of Care

Southern Cross 1s committed to becoming the most trusted and
sought after care expentence in the UK To this end i 2010 we
recruited Irene Gray, @ highly experienced Director of Care, to
ensure leadership of the highest quality in this area

Each region of the UK has its own regulatory body that undertakes
Its own inspection process and the Group monitors these
inspections closely We are pleased to report that the percentoge
of homes rated good and excellent improved by 5 4% to 82 2%

Untrt June of this year, the regulator in England, where most of our
homes are based, operated a star rating system This rating
scherne was predicated upon care standards contained in previous
legislation and, consequent on new standards being introduced by
the Health and Social Care Act 2008, this system was discontinued
The ratings shown below have not been updated since June, when
the star rating system was frozen It s planned to introduce a new
system In 2011 but, as yet, there 15 no clanty about that system

[nspection Rating 2008/2 2009/10
Excellent (blue) 146% 146%
Good (green} 622% 676%
Adequate {gamber) 210% 148%
Pcor (red) 22% 30%

The figures above are based on the external inspection scores

of our homes in England, which represent 79% of our total estate
Hormes in Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland are graded on

a different basis by their respective inspection agencies and
therefore direct comparison 1s not possible However, in addition
to external inspections we appty a thorough inspection process

to our own homes and, based on this inspection, we would expect
our homes in the remainder of the UK to achieve scores similar to
our English hernes

Sormetimes, homes can expernience temporary probtems slipping to
a lower status While the quality of our homes overall improved In
the year on additional 2 homes were judged as Poor ot the period
end During the year the Group upgraded its internal inspection
system ina dnive to eliminate poorly performing homes and raise
the standards of all homes to o consistent and sustainable level

As this new system becomes more embedded we will be able to
wdentify the signs that a home's care quolity 1s slipping thereby
allowing for early intervention to prevent, for example, an admiss:ans
embargo (voluntary or otherwise) from being ptaced upon it

It 1s our wision and wish that our inspection regime will become so
trusted that the regulatory bodies will feel able to rely upon it

The Board continues ta review the status of inspection quality
scores at each of its meetings

The Group also continues to mamtam 150 9001 accreditation

at many of its homes As a result of the effort that went into the
Group's operational restructure, progress i this area was slower
this year However, we now have 225 homes accredited

Customers

Obtaining feedback from residents, famtlies and professionals
associated with the Group's homes 1s very important to us Each
of the hormes has in place measures to gather and act upon this
feedback This includes resident and family meetings, open days
and surveys

For most of the year the Group operated a ‘stand alone’ customer
satisfaction urit which sat outside the operational structure and
conducted satisfaction surveys amongst residents, therr families
and professionals Following the closure of the Group’s Glosgow
office where this unit was based the Group has taken the
opportunity to develop a new methodology for canvassing and
reporting on the views of all stakeholders and this will be rolled
out duning the course of 2011

The Group recogrises that it has a duty to deliver its servicas to

its residents in @ safe and responsible manner - a duty of care
that we take extremely seriously It s true to say that as an
organtsation individually and collectively we have a zero tolerance
to any form of abuse We continue to work with the chanty Action
on Elder Abuse (Registered Charity Number 1048397) who provide
a confidential whistle blowing helpline This helpline 1s manned by
the chonty and 15 available to anyone associated with a Southern
Cross home who suspects any form of abuse or Inapproprateness
In the delivery of a service Calls to this helpline are assessed by the
charity and, if necessary, appropniate action I1s taken by them to
resolve the situation

We also continue to promote the government’s ‘Dignity in

Care Campaign’ We employ more than 800 registered ‘Dignity
Champions’ whose role is to ensure that the nights of indivduals
in our homes are respected at all times

Workplace

People continue to be the Group’s most valuable asset Their
performance is critical if we are to deliver the Groups demanding
objectives Considerable progress has been made this year to
create the frarmewaork, structure and support required to enable
our people to both fulfil their potential and deliver a high quality
service to our residents

To enable this, during 2010 we expanded the Human Resources
function so thatit, and therefore the Group, s better placed to
qddress all aspecis of the employee Wfecycle

Key Staff Information

Measure 2007/2008 2008/2009% 2009/2010
Staff numbers 42,845 44,711 43,099
% of workforce fernole 839 825 82
% of serior manogement female 68 67 75
% of workforce from non-EU countries 85 97 68

Average age of employees 40 40 4
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This year approval was given to implement a new HR and Poyrolt
system, which will go live during 2010/2011 A new Time and
Attendance system that will transform rostenng (which to-date
hos been an immensely time-censuming rota for Home Managers),
improve payrol! cost control and save adrmnistratton time 15
currently being rolied out to all homes These systems will be

key in supporting people management, providing infermation for
decision making and 1dentifying opportunities for improvement

in such areas as staff retention, turnover and absence

Stoff Engagement

The results of our staff survey last year gave us insight nto how
engagement with the Group’s objectives relate to our team’s
daily expenence This instight was re-enforced with the findings
of workshops and site visits

One of the key findings was that staff told us that they needed to
know what 1s expected of them at work They needed greater role
clanty and defintion In addition, Home Managers wanted to be
given additional tools and support to enable thern to develop the
full potential of ther team

Duning the year we created a HR Hub to provide the additional HR
support that our people were looking for

In the current year we intend to launch a new People Management
Framework which will provide
+ aframework to guide our decisions around policies, processes
and approach,
¢ consnstency I how we manage our people processes,
+ afoundation to enable us to become an ‘Employer of Choice’,
+ onexpression of our corporate values and business ethos, and
a basis for engendering respect amongst every employee In
the orgarisation

We believe this People Management Framework will help us to
reduce stoff turnover and manage our recruitment more
effectively whilist creating an engeged and motivated workforce

We will continue actively to seek feedback from our staff and
ensure that all imtiatives address and reflect staff input and
feedback

Staff Recogrution and Reward
We believe it 1s important thot stoff feel recognised ond rewarded
for the work that they do

We ensure our staff are appropriately remunerated for the work that
they do We benchrmark our salaries and benefits against our key
competitors and the local market In difficult econormc conditions,
the Group intends to use such funds as are available to address
attraction and retention 1ssues within business critical roles

We will continue to investigate ways of rewarding employees who
successfuily complete our in house education programs, offering
attractive career progression and rassing the capability of our
organisation

We estimate that 25% of our staff are members of a trade union
or similar type of organmisation A recognition agreement 1s in place
between Southern Cross and the GMB Union and both parties are
commutited to warking in partnership The Group will continue to
consult with employee representatives on major issues and
developments within the organisation

Thus year we will relounch our employee benefits package and
employee assistance program and a new occupational health
service for our stoff

People who contribute through therr skills, talents and experience
will In return benefit from development opporturities and financial
rewards

The Scuthern Cross Care Awards are held every two years, where
excellence across the country is cetebrated In Novernber 2009
each of the regions held local events to recognise their regional
winners with the grand final being held in March 2010 These
awards are about recogrising the work that people do, dayn,
day out, In the Group's homes

The Group 1s proud of the fact thot our staff are often honoured in
the local, regional and notional Care Awards

Stoff Training
Managers
Carers with
with  Registered
NVQ Manoger

level 2 Award
200612007 55% 52%
200712008 74% 62%
2008/2009 73% 91%
2009/2010 82% 84%

Our emphasis remains on developing the skills of our care workers
to enable thern to gam relevant work based qualifications Itis

of great credit to our carers that 82% now have the level 2 NVQ
quatification Our in-house training staff delivered courses i core
subjects covering everything from infection control to customer
care More speciabist traming such as the Alzheimer’s Society’s
‘Tomorrow 15 Another Day' training was debivered in our homes
specialising In dermentia care as well as a general dementia
awareness course in all other homes
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Corporate Social Responsibility
{continued)

During the year just ended, more than 700 staff went through the
Group's apprenticeship scheme We are working with our training
partners to extend this scheme to 16-18 year olds

To support all our staff training actvity, @ new Learning and
Development function was created during the year to provide a
more centralised approach to development for all staff and put in
place key programmes of development ta drive up the capability
of our staff Regional based traimning teams were created ond are
responsible for ensuring thot each home has access to appropriate
and timely tramnmng

Values

Underlying all these HR activities 1s a set of Group values These
values shape how we do business and how we treat our colleagues,
our residents, therr relatives and our partners

These values are the Southern Cross Way ‘In acttor, and influence
behaviours and corporate culture, and contnbute towards
optimurm business delivery

We are continuing to develop the way we articulate our values and
intend to consult further with our people to redefine, refocus and

agree a set of values that 1s in keeping with our business ethos and
will support the Group In meeting its objectives in the years ahead

Health and Safety

It 15 cntically important from both a moral and reputational
perspective that we provide an injury-free working envirenment
for our stoff, residents and their guests

The Board continues te lead and 1s committed to the Health and
Sofety agenda While our Chief Executive has overall responsibility
for Health and Safety, policy development and monitoring of
performance is undertaken by the Group’s Health and Sofety
Committee which 1s charred by Irene Gray, Director of Care

The Board recognises that there are three main strands to its
responsibility nametly to its residents (through the care function),
to its staff (through the HR function) and to all stakeholders
{through its estates function)

The Health and Safety Commuittee, which rmeets at least quarterly,
reports to the Group's Executive Committee The Board receives
reports on health and safety 1ssues at each board meeting

The Comrrittee 1s charged with ensuring that Group policy 1s
implemented and it does this by monitering performance by
way of a series of Key Performance Indicators The Committee’s
minutes are cascaded down through the operational structure
to each home These minutes form part of each home’s Health
and Sofety Group agenda Any 1ssues ansing for the attention
of the Group Health ond Safety Committee are passed back up
the operational structure This enables a full circle of clear
communication within the Group

Further communication channels include ‘The Weekly Briefing’,
which inctudes Hazard Alerts, guidance on areas of best practice
and changes to policy Hozard Alerts are also emailed directly to
the homes A quarterly newsletter summarises recent inttiatives
to ensure staff are well nformed

The Group recognises that an effective nsk management systern is
crucial to it meeting its health and safety objectives The Group 1s
currently working to further develop its nsk management system
and has recently appainted a Head of Governance to lead the
Group in all aspects of nsk management

This year, 129 Home Managers completed the Level 3, Health and
Safety Training prograrmime This programme 1s based on Southern
Cross Health and Safety policies and procedures and 15 validoted by
the Chartered Institute of Environmental Health

Community

One of our key objectives 1s to ensure that our homes play a part in
the life of the communities they serve We believe It is important
that we bring people of all genergtions together as each has
something to learn from the other It 1s for this recson that we
organise various events both in the homes and out In the
community that facilitate the meeting of people

The Group has a number of programmes in place to help the homes
bolster this position As in previous years, the Group supported local
youth teams through its kit sponsorship programme, which donates
kit to a variety of sports In exchange, the teams are encouraged to
work closely with therr local herme The young people make regular
wisits and spend time in the Group’s homes This has encrmaous
benefits in terms of greater understanding and leornng between
the generations In those communities

The Group also hos a fund matching programme whereby the
homes are encouraged to raise funds for the benefit of thewr
residents, which the Group will then match Homes also raise
money for local charities and again the Group matches those
donations The total committed by Southern Cross on kit
sponsorship and matching funds 1n the last year was £135,267

No of teamns/
homes supparted
2008/ 2009
Programme 2009 2010
Kit sponsorship 78 43

Fund Matching 280 341
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We remain totally commutted to our partnership with Action on
Elder Abuse, the pnncipal charnty we supported in 2009/2010
This year, we donated £22,620 to the charty

Environment
Energy Consumption

CO, tonnes €O, tonnes

produced produced

Source of Energy 2008/2009  2009/2010
Electnioty 76,720 76,243
Natural Gos 62,345 59,609
ol 5,610 5373
LPG 1,196 1,166
Total 145,871 142,391
Per bed equavalent frgure 387 369

We remain commutted to reducing the Group's energy consumption,
while maintaining a consistent service for our residents

We have increased our emphasis on identifying and improving our
environmental impact This work has been controlled and directed
by the newly formed Praperty Services Departrnent, which has
reviewed our policies for procurement of products and services,
design of new properties, and operation of homes

We plan to provide environmental and energy/carbon reduction
traiming and awareness at all our locations, te ensure we receive
committed and informed staff engagement

The Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme
{CRC) began on 1 April 2010 and we have had In place since late
2009 a detailed plan to manage the impact of this Changes to
the scheme, announced in October 2010, which may increase
utility costs by some 6-9%, heighten our need to reduce our
qualifying emissions We continue to install additional metenng
that comphes with CIBSE TM 39 guidelines to allow the careful
monitoring of performance Acting upon the information
gathered remains key to reducing our carbon footprint

A lorge proportion of our energy 1s consumed by lighting and
we have conducted a senes of trials on energy saving fittings
to replace low efficacy systems Once the results of the savings
and their suitability are confirmed, we plan terollout a
replacernent programrme

Waste Management continues to be important for the Group

Absolute Figures

2006/ 200 2008/ 2009/
2007 2008 2009 2010
Type of Waste Tonnes Tonnes Tonnes Tonnes
Landfill 13,313 10,543 7,685 8,082
Recycling - - 1,579 892
Clinical 12,562 13,677 11,384 12,611

Per Bed Equivalent Figures

2006/ 2007 2008/ 2009/
2007 2008 2009 2010
Type of Waste Tonnes Tonnes Tannes Tonnes
Londfill 039 028 020 021
Recycling - - 004 002
Clhinical 037 037 029 033

Clinicol waste presents particular challenges The Group continues
to seek ways to deal with this woste in an environmentally efficient
way while ensuring ali sites are managed i line with statutory
requiremnents

Suppliers

At Southern Cross we value our supplier relationships While

we look to obtain products ond services at a competitive price,
batanced with good service, we recogrise that this is only
sustainable when our suppliers alsoc make a fair return Equally,
1t1s important that we honour our agreed terms of business with
them When awarding new centracts or reviewing existing suppler
arrangements we seek, through our due diligence process, to
understand our supplers environmental policies and ensure
these are aigned with cur own commitment to environmental
best practice

Our tugh volume suppliers use our eProcurement system (e-HIPO)
though work continues to find ways of further streamlining

the number of suppliers we use and hence the volume of paper
generated

Priorities for the Year Ahead

While the general backdrop to trading remans challenging we
anticipate that our efforts to develop our CSR programme may be
constrained Our key prionties are to develop our stoff engagement
for the benefit of all stakeholders and reduce our carbon emissions
while remaining firm on our commitment to our chosen principal
charity, Action on Elder Abuse
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Directors

and Officers

Committees

Audit Committee

Nancy Hollendener (Chairmany
Baroness Morgan of Huyton
Christopher Fisher

Nomination Committee
Ray Miles (Charrman)
Christopher Fisher

Nancy Holtendoner
Baroness Morgan of Huyton
Jamie Buchan

Remuneration Committee
Chnstopher Fisher {Chairman)
Baroness Morgan of Huyton
Nancy Hollendoner

Ray Miles

Quality Assurance Committee

Baroness Morgan of Huyton
(Chairman)

Nancy Hollendoner

Jamie Buchan
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1. Ray Miles (66)

Non-Executive Director and Chairman

Ray Miles became a Non-Executive Director of the Company n
June 2006 and served as the Seniar Independent Directeor until
he was appointed Chairman on 1 January 2008 Mr Miles has
spent most of his career in the shipping industry From 1988 until
December 2005, he was Chief Executive Officer of CP Ships Lirmited
He was also the Senior Independent Drrector of Stelmar Shipping
Limited from 2004 to 2005 and Deputy Chairman of International
Personal Finance PLC from Juty 2007, when it demerged from
Prowident Financial PLC, until May 2010 Mr Miles joined the
adwisory boord of Stena AB in 2006 He 15 a Trustee of Country
Holidays for Inner City Kids

2. Jamie Buchan (51)

Chief Executive

Jamie Buchan was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 1 January 2009 Between 2002 and May 2008,

Mr Buchan, backed by a Malaysian private fund, led the successful
turnarcund and subsequent sale of the ExCel Exhibition and
Conferenice Centre inLondan Prior to that, Mr Buchan held leading
roles in hospitality at Whitbread, in customer service and brand
development at Centrica, In logistics at Ocean Group, and, for 14
years, retail service station operations in Esso, which he joined

as a graduate trainee in 1981

3. Richard Midmer (56)

Group Finance Director

Richard Midmer joined the Company as Group Finance Director

on 1 July 2008 He previously worked in the oil ond gos sector as
Finance Director of British-Borneo Ol & Gas PLC He joined NHP PLC,
a quoted care home company, as Group Finance Director in
Novermnber 2000, where he worked until its acquisition by private
equity in February 2005

4, Christopher Fisher (57)

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Chnistopher Fisher joined the Beard n June 2006 and became

the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director in Jonuary 2008
He s a partner in Penfido, a firm providing independent financial
advice to penston fund trustees, a director of Bank of Ireland {UK)
PLC and 15 also President of the Counail of Reading University He
spent maost of his career at Lazard, the investment bank, where he
was a Managing Director, and has also served as Vice Chairman,
Corperate Finance, at KPMG, and as @ Non-Executive Director of
Kelda/Yorkshire Water

5. Baroness Morgan of Huyton (51)

Non-Executive Director

Baroness Morgan of Huyton became a Non-Executive Director
of the Company in June 2006 Aformer teacher, Baroness Morgan
worked as a senior aide to the Bntish Prime Minsster from 1997
to 2005 In 2001, she was made o peer and served as a Mimister
in the Cabinet Office From 2001 to 2005, she was Director of
Government Relations, Downing Street, working closely with the
Prime Mirnister Baroness Morgan 1s now working as an adwviser to
a children’s charity, serving on the Board of the Olympic Delivery
Authority, a member of the advisory commuttee to the Boord of
Virgin Group Holdings Limited and 1s a Non-Executive Director of
Carphone Warehouse PLC

6. Nancy Hollendoner (55)

Non-Executive Director

Nancy Hollendoner joined the Board tin Jonuary 2008

Ms Hollendoner is a semior adviser on the healthcare market to
Hawkpoint Partners Limited She previously worked as an equities
analyst specialising m the healthcare market and was employed
by UBS Investment Bank resigning from that position in 2002

Ms Hollendoner served as a Non-Executive Director of NHP PLC
between 2003 and 2005

Company Secretary

William Mcleish was appointed as Company Secretary on 25 May
2006 and 1s o chartered accountant On 1 August 2007, he was
elected an associate of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators

Notes
Kermema Foulkes resigned as an Executive Director on 31 December 2009
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1. Mark Cash (51)

Regional Director - South

Mark Cash joined the Group in Septernber 2009 From 2004 to
2009 he was UK Operations Drrector for Sunnse Sentor Living Ltd,
overseeing Its organic growth in the premium private pay assisted
iving and care horme sector Prior to that, he held a variety of
management roles within ExxonMobil, which he joined as a
graduate trainee In 1981 Until 2004 he led Exxon’s company
owned UK and Ireland service station network

]
2. Pam Finnis (41)

Regional Director - Centrol

Pam Finnis joined the Executive Commuttee following her
appointment as Regional Director in September 2009 Prior to

that Mrs Finnis was the Managing Director of the Midtands Division
She has 27 years experience within the independent care sector
She s a Registered General Nurse and previously held senior
management positions with Ashbourne Healthcare and Highfield
Care before joiring Southern Cross in 2004

3. Irene Gray (56)

Director of Care

Having trained as a nurse in the early 1970's, lrene subsequently
spent 7 yeors working as a ward sister n elderly care Irene has
held a number of executive roles, including Senior Civil Servant,
within the NHS over a period of 24 years and joined the Company
from the University Hospitals Bristol NHS Foundation Trust where
she was Chief Operating Officer In 1997 she wos awarded a MSc
from Nottingham University and currently holds honorary Chairs
in Nursing at three universities A ‘change leader’, Irene has been
invetved in policy development and delivery at a national levet
ond therefore brings sigrificant experience to her role

4. Michael MacIntosh (36)

Regional Director - Scotland and Northern Ireland

Michael MacIntosh joined the Group in March 2009 as Managing
Dwrector of the Scottish Division, and subsequently joined the
Executive Cornmittee Mr MacIntosh joined from Four Seasons
Health Care as Director of Public Private Partnerships Previously,
he has worked for Barchester Heolthcare, Westminster Health
Care, the NHS and Highlands and Islands Enterprise

5. David Smith (36)

Director of Finance and Support Services

David Smith joined the Group as Group Finonce Manager in March
2006, was appointed Group Financial Controller in March 2008 and
Director of Finance and Support Services on 1 September 2010 He
previcusly spent 10 years at PwC werking in various roles including
secondments to Riyadh, Soudi Arabio and the United States

6. Phil Whitaker (48)

Regional Director — North

Prior to his appointment to the Executive Commuittee Phil Whitaker
was responsible for Southern Cross’ North Eastern division having
Joined the Group In June 2007 Mr Whitaker has over 15 years
expenence in the Independent health and social care sector and has
previously held senior positions within BUPA and Takare PLC Prior to
this he managed services at the Department of Employment

7. Patricia Williamson (57)

Group Human Resources Director

Patricia Willlamson was appomnted as Group HR Director on 1 July
2009 Patricia previously worked at Trader Media Group, part of
the Guordian Media Group, as Group HR Director Ms Willamson
has considerable experience in leeding and delivering business
transfermation gamned across banking and services industries
She has held many senior positions Including Chief Operating
Officer for Barcloys Asset & Sates Finance

Notas
Executive Directors Jarmie Buchan and Rrchard Midmer ore also membaers of the
Executive Comrruttee, their blographires can be seen on page 25
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the period ended 30 September 2010

Activities of the Group

The Group’s principal activity 1s the operation of care homes for the elderly It 1s also involved in the development of new homes
and the prowision of specialist services for people with physical and/or learning disabiities The principal activity of the Company
15 a holding company

A detatled review of the Group's activities, development of its business and future plans is provided in the Chief Executive’s report and
In the financial review

Results and Dividends
The consclidated income statermnent, showing the results for the peniod, 1s set out on page 45 A detailed review of the Group's results
1s provided in the financial review

The Directors recommend that no final dividend (2009 £NIl) be paid The Company did not poy an intenim dividend during the year
{2009 £NIl)

Directors
The names of the Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of sigring of the financial statements together with the
biographical detans of the current Directors are given on page 25

The beneficial interests of Directors in the shares of the Company, details of service contracts and remuneration are shown i the report
of the Remuneration Committee on pages 37 to 43

Employment

The Group seeks to recruit, develop end employ throughout the organisatton, suitably qualified, capable and experienced people, irrespective
of age, race, religion or sexual orientation Ermployee involvement in the business 1s encouraged The Group commumicates with its employees
through the use of the Group's intranet, its regular newsletter and conferences and seminars for home and regional manogers It obtains
employee feedback through employee surveys and forrmal focus groups Full and far consideration 1s given to applications for employrment
fromn disabled persons, having regard to their particular aptitudes and abilities Efforts are made to continue the employment of those who
become disabted dunng their employment Retraining of newly disabted employees is provided where appropriate and fair consideration i1s
given to oll employees In terms of their career development and prometion prospects

Supplier Payment Policy

It1s Group policy to pay suppliers in accordance with agreed terms and conditions, provided that suppliers also comply with all relevant
terms and conditions At 30 September 2010 the Group’s supplier payrment penod was 43 days (2009 46 days) The Cormpany 15 a holding
company and does not have trade suppliers

Fmanciol Instruments
Information on the Group’s financial sk mancgement objectives, policies and on the exposure of the Group to relevant risks in respect
of financial instruments 1s set out In note 22 to the consolidated financial statements

Key Performance Indicators
The key performance indicators (KP1s) that are regularly used by the Group to monitor progress against its strategy are shown below and
discussed in the Highlights section and the financial review cn page 16 of the report

KPI Description

Quality outcorne The number of homes judged to be either good or excellent expressed as a percentage of total homes
Average occupancy The average accupancy of avallable beds expressed as a percentage

Average weekly fee The average weekly fee achieved per occupied bed

Home EBITDAR befare central costs Horne EBITDAR {Earrungs before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, rent and loss on disposal

of property, plant and equipment and subsidiary undertakings, onerous contracts and related
impairments, impairment of property assets held for resale and exceptional central costs) before
central costs

Adjusted EBITDA EBITDA (Earnings before interest, tox, depreciotion, amortisation, loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment and subsidiory undertakings, onerous contracts and related impairments, impairment
of freehold assets held for resale ond exceptional central costs) after adding back the charge for future
rmiimum rentol increases

EBITDAR rnargin Home EBITDAR before central costs expressed as a percentage of revenue

Rent cover Home EBITDAR before central costs divided by the cash rent cost
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties
Southern Cross, like all businesses, faces a number of operating rnisks and uncertainties

There are a number of nsks that could impact the Group’s long-term performance and steps are taken to understond ond evaluate these
in order to achieve our obgective of creating long-terr, sustamable retumns for shareholders

The Group has a nsk management process in place which is designed to identify, manage and mitigate business nsk Regular reporting
of these risks and the monitoring of actions and controls 1s conducted by the Audit Committee, which reports its findings to the Board
This process 1s described in the corporate governance section

The most fundamental nisks faced by the Group are
+ faiture to comply with regulation, possibly leading in extreme cases to the revocation of o care home's registration,
+ falure to achieve quality standards, possibly leading to the suspension of admissions to our homes,
generating severe negative publicity were a serious incident to occur at one of the Group's care homes,
+ budgeted occupancy levels not being achieved with negative effects on profit,
average weekly fees do not rise, at least in ltne with caosts, putting profit margins under pressure,
failure to meet bank covenants, and
« failure to attract, retan and motivate nursing and other qualified stoff, adversely impacting adrrmissions

Takeover Directive

The Company has one class of share capital, ordinary shares There are no speaal control nghts in relation to the Company’s shares The
rules governing the appointment and replacement of Board members and changes to the Articles of Association accord with usual English
company law provisions The Board has power to purchase its own shares and 1s seeking renewal of that power at the forthcoming AGM
within the imits set outin the notice of that meeting There are no significant agreements to which the Company 1s party, which take
effect, alter or terminate in the event of change of contre! of the Company There are no agreements providing for compensation for
Directors or employees on change of control

Events After the Balance Sheet Date
Events which happened after the balance sheet date are set out in note 33 to the financial staterments

Substantial Shareholdings
At 3 December 2010, the Company had been notified of the following interests which exceed 3% of the Company’s issued share capital

%
Legal and General Group PLC 22,920,058 1219
J O Hambro Capital Management Group Lirmited 17,300,000 920
Deutsche Bank AG 16,797,232 893
UBS Investment Bank 15,182,728 807
Lloyds Banking Group PLC 9,325,487 496
Breeden European Ventures LLC 8,250,244 439
JP Morgan Asset Management 6,422,964 342
ING Bank NV 6,310,483 336
Standaord Life Investments Limited 6,289,756 334
Credit Suisse SEC (Europe) bimited 6,221,178 331

Charitable and Political Donations
Durmng the period the Group maode donattons to chanties totalting £85,464 (2009 £156,300) No political donations were made Further
information on the Group’s charitable donations 1s disclosed in the corporate social responsibility report on pages 22 and 23

Directors’ Indemnities
The Company mantains hability msurance for its Directors and Officers The Company also provides an indemnity for its Directors and the
Secretary, which 1s a qualifying third party indemnity provision for the purposes of the Comparies Act 2006

Annual General Meeting
The notice convening the Annual General Meeting of the Company together with explanatory resolutions 1s included 1n a separate
docurment sent to shareholders
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect of the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report

and the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ Rernuneration Report and the financial staterments in
occordance with applicable law and regulctions

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Drectors have elected to
prepare the Group and parent company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Urion Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of offairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that
period In prepanng these financial statements the Directors are required to
+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reascnable and prudent,
+ state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements, and
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s Inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue
in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable thern to ensure that
the financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for sofeguording the ossets of the Company and the Group and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of froud and other rregularities

The Directors are responstble for the maintenance and integnty of the Company’s website Legislation in the Urited Kingdam governing
the preparation and dissermination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed in the Directors and Officers section confirm that, to the best of their knowledge
+ the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view
of the assets, ligbiities, financial position and loss of the Group, and
* the Directors Report together with the Chief Executive’s Report and Financial Review include a fair review of the development ond
pefrformcnce of the business and the posttion of the Group, together with o description of the principal nsks and uncertainties that
it faces

Disclosure of information to Auditors

Each person who 1s a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

+ sofar as the Director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit infarmation of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and

* he has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company’s guditors are aware of that information

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordgnce with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act 2006

By order of the
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Corporate Governance

Southern Cross 1s commuitted to achieving the highest standards of corporate governance possible The Board's Code of Ethics, whichis
subscribed to by all Directors, sets the tone for corporate behaviour The principles of corporate governance set out in the Combined Code
on Corporate Governance issued by the Financial Reperting Standards Counal in June 2008 (‘the Combined Code’) are fully supported by
the Board

This staterment describes how the principles of the Combined Code have been cpplied to the Group in the current financial year

The Board
The Board currently compnises three Non-Executive and two Executive Directors, in additien to the Non-Executive Chairman Biographical
details of the current Directors are given on page 25

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive are clearly defined, approved by the Board and separate The Charrman’s pnmary responsibility
Is for leading the Board and ensuring its effectiveness The Chief Executive 1s responsible for the executive management of the Group’s
operations and day-to-day business activities

The Board of Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC is collectively responsible for the success of the Group

Itsrole s to

« provide entrepreneurial leadership of the Group within a framework of prudent and effective cantrols which enables nisk to be
conttnually assessed and managed,
set the Group's strategic aims, and to ensure that the necessary financial and human resources are in place for the Group to meet
its cbjectives,
continually review the processes in place for monitoring and evaluating nsk and the effectiveness of the Group's systemn of internal
control, nsk management and operationol effectiveness, keeping in mind the importance of the Group's reputation and public image,
ensure that appropnate operating budgets and longer term plans are in place and manitor management’s perferrnance against these,
set the Group's values and standards and ensure that its obligations to its shareholders and other stokeholders are understood and
met, including reparting to shareholders on the Board's stewardship,
establish a culture, based on integnty, openness, trust and robust and constructive challenge, which motivates management to be
successful, and

+ ensure that the Group meets its objectives and consequently increases shareholder value

Specific responsibilities are reserved to the Beard, certain of which may be delegoted in the first instance to Board Committees The policies
and procedures adopted by the Board are documented in a manual, which sets out the roles and delegated authorities applying to the
Boord This manual is reviewed and updated whenever necessary

To assist the Boord in the stewardship of the Group, a comprehensive set of documents, which detail financial and operational
performance tracked aganst budgets and key performance indicators, together with reports on personnel, developments, acquisitions,
nsk management and compliance matters, are provided to the Board The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved for its
approval, these matters include approval of

+ the annual strategic plan and budgets,

+ the Group’s sk management and treasury polictes,

« major operating and capital expenditure proposals,

+ substantial contracts,

- changes to the structure, size and composttion of the Board,

= Group policies including the health and safety policy, and

+ Corporate communications

The Company Secretary 1s responsible for ensuring Board procedures are complied with The removal from office of the Company
Secretary 1s a matter reserved for the whole Board

The Board meets, formally, bi-monthly, and odditional meetings are arranged os necessary to consider urgent business The Chairman
alsc meets with the Non-Executive Directors when no Executive Directors are present The table below summanses the total number
of formal Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Commiitee, Remuneration Committee, Quality Assurance and Executive Committee
meetings held durning the year and the attendance by each Director at those meetings
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Boord Audit Nominouon  Rermunerction Quolity Executive

Total number of meetings** 7 3 1 2 2 12
Attendance at meetings

Roy Miles 7 - 1 2 - -
Jamie Buchan 7 1* 1 2" 2 12
Richard Midmer 7 3+ - - - 11
Kamma Foulkes {resigned 31 December 2009) 1 - - - - 3
Baroness Morgan of Huyton 7 3 1 2 2 -
Christopher Fisher 7 3 1 2 - -
Nancy Hollendoner 7 3 1 2 -

v Bymnvitation
** Due to diary constraints, The Board, and the Audit and Remuneration Committees met 1n early Qctober 2010 rather than September os they had done previously

In addition to the above meetings, a number of meetings were held by telephone to deal with urgent business which arose between
the formal meeting dates

On 2 October 2009, the Company announced that Kamma Foulkes planned to retire from the Company with effect from
31 December 2009

The induction process for new Directors is the responsibility of the Chairman The process inctudes industry specific presentations from
third parties and manogement presentations as welt as wisits to the Group’s operations The process 1s supported wath a Board induction
pack which 1s designed to prowide new Directors with background documentation about the Group It contains information on its hustory,
operations, policies and procedures and details their duties under the Companies Act as well as explaining the additional dealing and
disclosure obligations anising from the Company's stock exchange bisting Directors can take independent advice on matters relating to
therr duties, at the expense of the Company, and have access to the advice ond services of the Company Secretary

The Board considers Baroness Morgan of Huyton, Christopher Fisher and Nancy Hollendoner to be mdependent Non-Executive Directors
In the view of the Board they are independent of management and free from any relationship, business or otherwise, which could
materially interfere with the exercise of therr independent jJudgement

Currently one third of the Directors are subject to retirement from the Board at the Company's Annual General Meeting Details of the
retiring Directors and of those ndividuals nominated for office are set out n the Notice calling that Meeting The Board has resolved
to adopt the recommendation contained in the UK Corporate Governance Code that alt directors stand for re-etection annually

Each year, the Board carnes out a formal evaluation of its own performance and of individual Directors The evaluation covers all ospects
of Board behaviours and processes including its composition, the performance of its Committees, Directors and Secretary and its
nteraction with its stakeholders External adwisers on corporate governance, Linstock Limuted, facilitate the evaluations This year's
evaluation process 1s underway The results of the last evaluation were considered by the Board at its meeting in February The issues
identified included the need

* toimprove board access to management beyond the Executive Directors,

* toexpand the Group's corporate strateqy,

+ toadopt a consistent approach to nisk management ocross the whole business,

*+ to develop anintegroted human resources strategy

The Board considers that it has made significant progress in all these areas in the course of the year

The Non-Executive Directors, led by the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director, are responsible for evaluating the performance of the
Chairman and the Executive Directors Resources are available to support Directors in addressing any identified training needs thot arse
out of performance evaluations

Conflicts of Interest

Under the Companies Act 2006, a Director must avord o situation where he has, or can have, a direct or mdirect interest that conflicts,

or possibly rmay conflict, with the Company's interests The requiremnent is very broad and could apply, for example, if a Director becomes

a Dwrector of another company or a trustee of another orgamsation The Companies Act 2006 allows Direciors of public companies to

authonse conflicts and potential conflicts where appropniate The Company’s Articles contain provisions which allow the Board to

authonse Directors’ conflicts of interest At each Board meeting, Directors are invited to

+ declare the noture and extent of their interests (direct or indirect) in any proposed or existing transaction or arrangement with the
Cornpany, and

* update any declaration of interests which has become inaccurate or incomplete

Board minutes evidence any conflicts thot are authorised
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Committees of the Board
The Board has constituted a number of committees, speafically Audit, Remuneration, Nermunation, Quality Assurance and Executive
Committees The roles and terms of reference of each committee are summarised below

Audit Committee

The Audit Commuttee 1s compnsed of the three iIndependent Non-Executive Directors Nancy Hollendoner, the commuttee’s chairman,
was previously an equity anatyst specialising in the healthcare market with the investment bank UBS and 1s currentty a senior adviser on
the healthcare market to Howkpoint Partners Limited The cther members of the Committee are Chnstopher Fisher and Baroness Morgan
of Huyton In the view of the Board both Nancy Hollendoner and Christepher Fisher bring recent and relevant financial expertise to the
commiitee

The Comrruttee meets formally at least four times a year and otherwise os required The External Auditors, Group Finance Director,
Director of Finance and Support Services and Head of Internal Audit are invited to attend Audit Committee meetings At each meeting,
an opportunity 1s given for the Non-Executive Directors and the External Auditors to meet In private As a matter of course the Charr

of the Audit Committee communicates with the audit partner outwith formal committee meetings

The Committee has clearly defined terms of reference, these are set out on the Group’s website Its responsibilities include ossisting
the Board in the effective discharge of its duties in respect of carporate governance, financial reporting, sk managerment, and
internal control

The Committee 1s responsible for making recommendations to the Board in relotion to the appointrment, reappointment, any matters
reluting to the resignation or dismissal of the External Auditors as well as the approval of External Auditor's fees Consideratton 1s given
to the desirability of rotating boeth the qudit firm and partner

The independence and abjectivity of the External Auditors Is reviewed by the Audit Committee, with specific consideration given to the
level of non-audit fees Information on non-audit fees is given in note 6 to the consolidated financial stoterments In general, non-audit
fees paid to the External Auditors are not allowed to exceed the audit fee The Committee approves each appointment and dees not
consider the non-audit fees paid to the External Auditors to have offected their Independence or objectivity

The Committee receives an annual independence confirmation from the External Auditors

The Board, through its Audit Committee, receives regular reports from the Internal Audit department Deloitte LLP provided support to
the Internal Audit Department during the year The work of that deportment, presented during the course of the year, was summarised

in its annual report to the Committee The Audit Committee also receives regular reports from the Group Risk Monagement Committee on
the policies and processes in place to control and mitigate risks These risks are continually reassessed The findings of the Internal Audit
department and the Committee’s assessment of the risks facing the Group were used to create the Group’s 2011 internal audit ptan which
has been agreed by the Audit Committee The Committee will monitor progress against the plan

The Charr of the Audit Commuittee 1s In regular communication with the Head of Internal Audit outwith formal commuittee meetings In
addition, durnng the year the Charr of the Audit Cornmittee ottended 4 out of 5 Group Risk Management Comrrittee meetings as an observer

Other work of the Committee inctudes evaiuating the performance and effectiveness of both the external and internal audit functions
This year, Lintstock Limited, a corporate advisory firm, assisted with the review of the internal audit function

The Committee also has responsibility for reviewing the Group’s procedures by which employees may, in confidence, raise concerns about
improprieties in matters of finanaal reporting, matters offecting the doy-to-day care of residents, or other motters, and for ensuring
these arrangerments allow for Independent investigation and appropnate follow up In particular, the Committee approved arrangements
with two external ogencies for telephone ‘hotlines’ that staff can use to report concerns

During the year the work undertaken by the Committee included the review of

* the appropnateness of accounting policies, estimates and judgements used in the financial statements,

* the annual and half year financial reperts and quarterly management statements prior to recormmending same for Beard approval,
*+  Internat Audit reports and significant findings,

+ financial nsks and internal controls,

* Director and Officer expenses and related party transactions,

+ externat and internal auditor performance,

+ external and internal audit plans and the scope of audit work,

» the impact of potential new or anticipated legislation, including, but not lmited to, changes affecting accounting policies and to pensions,
» whistle-blowing arrangements,

*+ business continuity plans,

+ treasury functions, and

+ the approvat of audit fees and terms of engagement

The Committee's terms of reference are set out on the Group's website
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration Committee
The composition and role of the Remuneration Commuttee is described in the remuneration report on pages 37 to 43 Full details of
Directors’ remuneration and shareholdings are also given in that report

Nomination Committee
The Normunation Committee comprises Ray Miles, Chnistopher Fisher, Baroness Morgan of Huyton, Nancy Hollendoner and Jarmie Buchan
The chairman of the Committee 15 Ray Miles The Committee meets formally as required

The Committee assists the Board in discharging its responsibilities reloting to the composition and make up of the Board 1t 1s responsible
for evaluating the balance of skills, knowledge and expenence on the Board, identifying potential candidates to be appointed as Directors,
as the need may anise, and determining succession planming for the Charman and Chuef Executive Duning the year the committee met once

The Committee’s terms of reference are set cut on the Group’s website

Quality Assurance Committee

The Quality Assurance Commttee assists the Board in its desire to deliver the highest possible quality of care to its residents The Quality
Assurance Commuttee’s responsibilities include monitonng the Group's compliance in relation to the obligations imposed on it by statute
and by the various regulatory guthonties, assessing the effectiveness of internal qualty reporting and of applicable internal controls,
identifying any patterns or trends evident from its review of inspection reports recerved fror regulators, monitoring staff turnover,
reviewing feedbock obtained from internal surveys of residents, regulators and staff and identifying appropriate corrective actions

when required

The Committee comprises Baroness Morgan of Huyton, Nancy Hollendoner and Jamie Buchan as well as senier management and 15
chaired by Baroness Morgan The Committee met twice this year

The Committee’s terms of reference are set out on the Group's website

Executive Committee

In 2009 the Board established an Executive Committee As well as the Executive Directors, the Committee comprises lrene Gray, Director
of Care, Dovid Smith, Director of Finance and Support Services, Patricia Williarmson, Group Human Resources Director, and the four
Regional Directors, namely, Phil Whitaker, Pam Finris, Michael MacIntosh and Mark Cash

Terms of reference for the Committee have been agreed and these are set aut on the Group's website The duties of the Committee
include mormtoring Group performance in all areas and directing improvements in efficiency, quality, ond profitability The Commuittee
also moniters and influences Group strategy and 1s responsible for business planning processes In summary, its role 1s to support the
strategy of the Board and direct the day-to-day business of the Group

Meetings are held monthly

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system of internal control and risk management The system includes an ongotng
process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant nisks faced by the Group The process I1s designed to manage rather than
eliminate the nsk of failure to achieve business objectives As with any system of internal control it can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss

The Board has reviewed the key nsks faced by the Group and the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system far the year under
review and up to the date of approvol of the Annual Report and Accounts

The Group's Risk Managernent system 15 described below

Risk Management

The Board has put in place a docurmented organisational structure with clearly defined and understood roles and responsibilities
Documented policies and procedures, at both home and head office level, have been established The Board remains responsibte
far the Company’s systerm of mternal control and for reviewing its effectiveness However, it has delegated doy-to-day responsibibity
for nsk management to its Group Risk Management Cormmittee {GRMC) The GRMC meets every three months or more frequently

if crcurnstances dictate

The GRMC 15 charred by the Group Finance Director and comprises representatives of the major functions of the Group, namely Finance,
Operations, Human Resources, Estates, Health and Safety and Information Technology
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The GRMC 15 responsible for setting Group policy and strategy for nsk management, identifying, assessing and managing risks facing the
Group and communicating, educating and training employees on the risks facing the Group A Risk Manager 1s assigned to each category
of nsk identified within the business

The Risk Management Policy provides the framework for managing nisk and aims to meet the requirements of good corporate
governance The management of the nsks identified in our business in an appropriate way 1s fundarmental to our approach

The following definitons are included within the policy

Risk Events that may prevent the achievement of the strotegic objectives of the Group,

Risk management The process of identification and treatrnent of nisks facing the Group so that strotegic objectives may be met, and
Risk ossessrnent The systematic process of analysing nsk

Policy Objectives
Southern Cross 1s committed to effective nsk management, the objectives in respect of risk management are as follows
* 1o set Group policy and strategy for risk management,
+ toidentify threats to the achievement of the Group's business objectives,
+ 1o assess, manage and control the Group’s exposure to risk,
10 educate and train Risk Managers in risk management,
* lo ensure nsk management culture s embedded within the organisation, and
to ensure timely communication of nsks to both internal and external sources

Reporting

It1s the responsibility of Risk Manogers to report any newly identified nsks which are then considered by the GRMC ot 1ts next meeting
Reports will include findings from the self-audit tools, 1ssues identified by Internal Audit and nisks identified as a result of specific incidents
thot occur unexpectedly in the normat course of business The GRMC filters these as appropniate and reports on them to the main Board
through the Audit Committee A Group Risk Register 1s maintained in respect of all major risks

Internal Audit

Throughout the year, the Internal Audit Department carried out a number of audits at the Group's homes and of head office functions
Deloitte LLP were also engaged to carry out audits of head office functions The results of these audits were reported to the Audit
Committee, which communicated any significant concerns to the Board Operational Monagement also performed regular audits of the
homes which considered complance with regulations and Group policies, health and sofety legislotion and other operational matters
To help ensure complance, the Group has a Quality Assurance Department that assists in training operational management on internal
compliance techniques and ensures that a uniform approach s adopted across the Group

Management Information Systems

The Group has a comprehensive managerment inforrmation system for regular and tmely reporting into the Board Every month the
financial reporting system produces reports on the results far the year and the penod to date, together with key performance indicators
{comparing them aganst budgeted performance), working capital movements, and detalled cash flow information The ranagement
reporting system also includes information on internal, external, regulatory and campliance audits, health and safety and other
operational matters The Board reviews this information at each of its meetings

Effectiveness of Internal Controls

An assessment 15 made of the financial, operational, compltance and nsk management controls Internal Audit assisted the Board inits
review In addition toits other work, Internal Audit tests the mitigating controls identified by the GRMC n relation to the Group's key risks
In order to give assurance os to therr effectiveness The Commuittee also requires Risk Managers to certify the effectiveness of the controls
identified as mitigating the risks they are responsible for

There were no significant control failures during the year

The Board confirms that it hos reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal controls, in accordance with the guidance ‘Internal
Control Rewised Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code’, and 1s satisfied that the Group complies with that guidance
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Investor Relations

The Board supports the view that effective commurmications with its shareholders, the ‘sell side’ research analysts and the wider
investment community 1s a critical element of corporote governance The Chairman has overall responsibility for ensuring effective
cormmunication with the Group's shareholders and to ensure the Board develops an understanding of the views of mojor shareholders

The Group’s Annual and Interim Reports are the pnmary method by which information 1s communicated to our shareholders In addition
there is alse regular dialogue with individual institutional shareholders In accordance with the EU Transparency Directive the Group Issues
quarterly Intenm Management Statements, and presentations for analysts and institutional shareholders are held after the announcerent
of mterrm and preliminary results These presentations are recorded and can be accessed via the Group’s website All Non-Executive Directors
are given the opportunity to attend these meetings and receve copies of any briefings on the Group produced by analysts or brokers The
Chairman and the Serior Independent Director are available to meet with major shareholders at any time and a number of such meetings
took place during the year

The Group’s Annual General Meeting 1s used as an opportunity to communicate with private investors and to give all erdinary Shareholders
the opportunity to ask questions of the Directors

In an effort to communicate more readily with its Shareholders, the Group's website has been developed to incorporate an investor
relations section A profile of the Group, statutory financial statements, all announcements and the corporate calendar are included

Going Concern
After making enquines, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and Company have adequate resources to continue
operations for the foreseeable future For this reason the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis

Comphiance Statement
The Board confirms that for the year under review the Campany has been in compliance with the provistons set out in Section 1 of the
2008 Combined Code

By order of the Board

Withiam McLeish
Company Secretary
7 December 2010
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Remuneration Report

Introduction
The Rernuneration Cornmittee presents its annual report which 1s unaudited except for those parts which are stated as being oudited

The following principles were applied by the Commuttee In setting remuneration policy
Our remuneration packages should be

Competitive The Remuneration packages should be sufficiently competstive to recruit and retain the correct calibre of indwvidual while
endeavouring to balance total reward towards performance-linked elements

Linked to Performance A sigruficant propartion of senior management rewards are determined by the Group’s success over the medium
to long-term

Algned to Shareholders A large part of the total reward package 1s to be paid in shares and is related to share price performance

Key Elements of Remuneration (Executive Directors)

Element Objective How much Condibions

Bose salory To reflect status and responsibilities Benchmarked to peer group None

Benefits To support Executives' well-being Car allowance and insurance benefits None

Annual bonus To align Executwes with business objectives Up to a maximum of 100% of salary 70% based on Group

performance, 30% based
on personal cbjectives

Pension (DC) To prowide for retirement 15% of salary None
Long-term incentives
Share options To align total reward with shareholder objectives  Current owards ore disclosed below Various, as disclosed below

Future awards up to a maximum of
100% of salary will be mode under
the approved PSP/CSOP scheme

Assessing what 1s ‘Competitive’

In order to understand the marketplace for seror executives, the Group regutarly asks its remuneration advisers to benchmark Directors’
remuneration packages against those of a peer group As the peer group 1s small, packages are glso benchmarked agamst FTSE 250
constituent companies When considering the appropriote cohort for comparisan purposes the Committee considers both the size and
complexity of the business and thus compansen against companies in the lower half of the FTSE 250 5 considered appropriate

Balance of Remuneration

In setting remuneration policy the Commuttee also considered the need to balance reward for short-term performance with the objective
of delivering shareholder value over the medium term ond the Board’s desire to see sustainable improvements in results over the medwm
to long-term

Other Senior Executives

The Committee also recognises that the top executives below Board level have an importont influence in the Group’s ability to achieve its
objectives Accordingly the Committee also reviews the remuneration packages for the Executive Committee to ensure that they rermain
competitive and that, in relative terms, the correct balance 1s struck between the Board and the rest of the employees

The Comrmuttee believes that appropriate rewards are available to those below board level to recognise ond retain our best employees

Linking Reward to Group Performance

The Group’s strotegy 1s described by the Chairman and by the Chief Executive in thewr reports on pages 2and 8 The Board measures

its progress towards achievernent of its business objectives by identifying key performance indicators (XPls), which are detailed on page
28, setting targets for these and monitoring their achievement The Executive Directors bonuses are designed to reflect thetr personal
accountability for achtevement of objectives within their area of responsibility

Long Term Incentives

At its AGM in Februery 2009, shareholders approved share option agreements for Jormie Buchan and Richard Midmer These, one-off,
agreements were proposed to address the particular areumstances faced by the Group following its refinancing in 2008 Otherwise,
awards have been made to Executive Directors under the Group’s approved PSP plan combined with awards under the approved
Company Share Option Plan (CSOP)
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Remuneration Report (continued)

Environmental, Social and Governance Issues

The Committee 15 able to consider environmental, social and governance 1ssues in setting performance targets for Executive Directors
although no direct ink between these 1ssues and Directors’ remuneration has been made to date Notwithstanding this the Committee
believes that the current Incentive structure does not present any nsk in these areas

Share Ownership

The Group believes that the awards granted to Executive Directors help ensure consideroble abgnment of Interest between the Directors
and Shareholders The Group mentains o policy under which Executive Directors should acquire (and hold) shares in the Company equal
in value to one and a half times their basic salary (two times in the case of the Chief Executive) - this shareholding to be built up over a
period of time not longer than five years QOther Executive Committee members should acquire shares in the Company equal in value

to one times their basic salary

The Remuneration Committee and its Role
During the year, the Remuneration Comrmittee comprised four Non-Executive Directors (namely, Christopher Fisher, Baroness Morgan
of Huyton, Nancy Hollendoner and Ray Miles)

The Committee has cleorly defined terms of reference, these are set out on the Group's website Its responsibilities include
making recommendations to the Board on the Group's framework of rermuneration for executive management,

+ reviewing the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy, and

« determining, on behalf of the Board, specific remuneration packages for each of the Executive Directors and the Chairman of
the Board

]Ihe Commttee meets formally at least twice a year and otherwise as required During the year the Committee’s work included the
ollowing items
* reviewing the competitiveness of Executive Director reward structures The Committee takes odvice from Hewitt New Bridge Street (HNBS),
+ reviewing Executive Directors’ and Senior Executives’ salaries, |
determining awards under Share Option plans,
determining awards under the Performance Share Plan,
reviewing the style and content of the remuneration report to shareholders,
setting targets for the executive bonus plan ond determining outcomes, and
+ determimng and agreeing the Group’s executive shareholding policy }

Remuneration Policy
The Group’s overall policy on remuneration 1s to attrect, develop, motivate and retan individuals ai all levels, pay competitive salaries ond
align remuneration arrangements with the Group’s strategy ond objectives

Basic Salory and Benefits

The Committee reviews basic salary and benefits each year, taking into consideratton Graup financial performance, individual
responsibilities, skills and experience Consideration is also given to the salanes and benefits poid to executives by other companies of
similar size and standing The last such review took place duning 2009 Directors' salaries for the 2011 financial year remain unchanged
since the dates of their appomtrnents

Annual Performance-related Bonus

Subject to attainment, of certain performance torgets (based on Adjusted EBITDA), Executive Directors are entitled to receive a bonus of
up to 70% of basic salary The Directors are also eligible to receive a further bonus equal to 30% of basic salary, subject to achievement
of agreed personal objectives

Inrespect of the 2010 financial year, the commuittee determined that no bonuses were payable to Executive Directors
A bonus plan for the 2011 financial year has been agreed and personal objectives have been set and agreed with the Executive Directors

Performance Share Plan

The Southern Cross Healthcare Group 2006 Performance Share Plan {‘the PSP') was adopted by the Company in June 2006 Awards under
the plan are generally made annually, based on an allocation of notional ordinary shares ~ equivalent in value to @ maximum of 100%

of annual bosic salary as at the oward date However, if the Remuneration Commuttee decides thot exceptional arcumstances exist in
retation to the recruitment or retention of an employee, then the maximum award will be equivalent to 200% of annual basic salary

On 24 March 2009, the Committee approved an amendment to the plan which had the effect of adding on HMRC approved section to
the ptan The approved (CSOP) section ollows paralle! awards to be made which can benefit from beneficial tax treatrment to the extent
that the Group’s share price at the time of exercise has increased by comparison to the price at the date of oward The gross value of
awards under the amended plan is the same as it would have been under the original plan
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2008 Awards (under onginal PSP plan)
On 17 January 2008, 3,715,808 awards were granted with an exercise price of £Nil A further grant of 370,970 awards with an exercise
price of £Nil was mode on 14 May 2008

The Cornpany falled te achieve the performance conditions applicable to these awards ond consequently the awards under this grant
have now lapsed

2009 Awards (under combined PSP/CSOP plan)

On 29 May 2009, options over 2,365,000 shares were granted with an exercise price of £Mil Further options over 150,000 and 130,000
shares both with an exercise price of £Nil were made on 1 July 2009 and 5 October 2009 respectively On like dates, parallel awards were
made under the opproved section of the plan (being respectively, 732,282, 21,857 and 23,622) The exercise price for these CSOP options
15 127p, 137p and 127p respectively

A summnary of the vesting conditions for these options follows

Options can be exercised under the plan at the expiry of the three-year period following the date of the grant and are subject to
attainment of agreed performance targets which, for these awards, will be tested ot the end of the 2011 financial year

100% of the options can be exercised on attainment of a performance target based an Adjusted EBITDA Specifically the condition 1s that
Adjusted EBITDA (gs defined on page 28) for the 2011 financial year 1s required to be £90 4m for full vesting to occur At Adjusted ERITDA
of £81 4m, 10% of the award will vest There is straight-line vesting between these points In terms of the approved option, the option
can be exercised to the extent that the share price on the exercise date exceeds the option price At the tme of vesting, to the extent that
there 1s a gain on the option granted under the Approved Section, PSP options will be forfeited to the same value, thus mantaining the
gross value of the award at the same level as it would have been had no CSOP award been made

2010 Awards {(under combined PSP/CSOP plan)
On 18 Jonuary 2010, options over 1,735,903 shares were granted with an exercise price of £NIl Parallel awards over 375,398 shares were
also made under the approved section of the plan The exercise price for the CSOP options 1s 152p

A summary of the vesting conditions for these options follows

Options can be exercised under the plan at the expiry of the three-year period following the date of the grant and ore subject to
attanment of agreed performance targets which, for these awards, will be tested at the end of the 2012 financial year

100% of the options can be exercised on attanment of a performance target based on Adjusted EPS Specifically the condition 1s that

Adyjusted EPS (as defined) for the 2012 financial year is required to be 24 13pps for full vesting to occur At Adjusted EPS of 22 23pps, 20% ,
of the award will vest There Is straight-line vesting between these points In terms of the approved option, the option can be exercised to :
the extent that the share price on the exercise date exceeds the option price At the time of vesting, to the extent thot there is o gain on I
the option granted under the Approved Section, PSP aptions will be forfeited to the same value, thus maintaining the gross value of the

award at the same levetl as it would have been had re CSOP award been made

General

In the event of a takeover, the normal position 1s that shares would vest on a pro-rata basis, subject to application of the performance
conditions However, the rules allow the Remuneration Commuttee to increase the number of shares to such higher number as it decides,
provided that such number does not exceed the number of shares determined by reference to the performance conditions

The Remuneration Committee considered the targets for each award to be appropnate at the date of award Targets for future awards
will be considered in the context of the Group's performance at the time of the award

Share Option Plans
At the AGM on 16 February 2009 shareholders approved Share Option Plans for both the Chief Executive and the Group Finance Director
The options were granted on 17 February 2009

The plans are simitar in design but differ in speaific clauses relating to the exercise date, number of shares under option, exercise prices
and performance conditions, reflecting the different timing ond ¢ircumstances of each Director's appointment No payment Is required
for the grant of the options The aptions are not transferable, except on death, and they are not pensionable

The Committee can decide to satisfy the options by the payment of a cash amount or the transfer of shares equat in value to the gan
made on the exercise of the eption The Chief Executive’s options will lapse on 1 January 2019 while the Group Finance Director’s options
will lapse on 1 July 2018, bath to the extent thot they have not been exercised

In both cases the options are exercisable three years after the date of appointment, other than Option & of the Group Finance Director’s
plan, which 1s not exercisable until after 1 January 2012
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The Chief Executive’s share options are subject to the following performance conditions The options will only be exercisable provided the
share price 15 in excess of 130p at the time of exercise and adjusted EPS has grown by 5% compound between the 2008 financial year
(odjusted EPS 19 60p) and the financial year ending on 30 September 2011 This EPS performance condition also applies to Option 4 of the
Finance Director’s share option award If the EPS performance condition 1s not satisfied, the Cornmittee may allow up to one third of the
options affected to be exercised in the period up to 31 March 2012 if it 15 their opinion, acting fairly and reasonably, that the underlying
financial performance of the Group satisfies atlowing such exercise

In the event of a takeover, to the extent that the Performance Conditions are satisfied, the Options may be exercised within ane month
(or such longer peniod as the Committee may permit)

SAYE
At its 2009 AGM, Shareholders approved an all employee Sharesave plan No invitations to participate in the plan were 1ssued in the year
under review

Amendment of Share Plans

No share plan can be omended unless shareholder approval 1s obtained, except for minor atterations to benefit the administrotion of the
Plan, to take account of a change in legistation or to ebtain or maintain favourable tax, exchange control or regulatory treotment for
Participants or any Group Member

Pension Benefits
Executive Directors are entitled to money purchase benefits equal to 15% of annual salary Bonuses and awards made under any share
plans are not pensionable

Service Contracts

The Executive Directors’ service agreements provide that the notice required to terminate their employment 1s 12 months given either by
the Director or the Company In the event of termination, Directors are expected to seek to mitigate therr loss and the Commuttee looks to
apply this principle as nigorously as possible

The Company also has the nght to terminate the emplayment of an Executive Director without notice or with less than 12 menths’ notice
by making a payment in heu of notice equal to the base salary and contrgctual benefits the Executive Director would be entitled to receive
during any un-expired part of the notice period

Under the current terms of the Executive Directors’ service agreements, Jarmie Buchan 1s entitled to recewve a basic salary of £430,000 per
annum, whilst Richard Midmer 1s entitled to receive a basic salary of £385,000 per annum Richard Midmer is also entitled to o car
allowance All Executive Directors are entitled to life and healthcare insurance

Kammoa Foulkes teft the Company and resigned frorn the Board on 31 December 2009 In compensation for the unexpired portion of her
service agreement she received a cash payment of £393,000 under the terms of her compromise agreement The Committee also agreed,
within the rules of the PSP plan, to consider her a ‘goed leaver’ in respect of her 2008 PSP award

A summary of the specific terms of the Executive Directors’ service agreements 1s included in the table below

Effective Un-expired Notice
Director dote term period
J Buchan 1Jonuory 2009 Indefinite 12 months
R Midmer 1July2008 Indefite 12 months

Outside Appointments

Executive Directors are permitted to accept or retain (pre-exssting) a non-executive appointment outside the Group, subject to perrmission
from the Committee and provided there are no conflicts of interest Such appointments can enhance Directors’ experience and add value
to the Group Fees for such appointments are normally retained by the indvidual Director In the period to 30 September 2010, Jarrie
Buchan and Richard Midmer retained £30,000 and £62,834 respectively in respect of non-executive appointments Kamma Foulkes did
not receive any fees for non-executive appointments

Non-Executives

The Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment with the Company The terms of the letters of appointment for the Non-Executive
Directors are subject to the provisions of the Articles All such appointments are for an initial term of three years from the date of the first
AGM following appomntment Following recommendations from the Normination Committee the Board resolved to re-appoint Ray Miles,
Chnistopher Fisher and Baroness Morgan of Huyton to serve for a further three years from 31 January 2010

The Rermuneration Committee makes recommendations on the level of fees payable to the Non-Executive Directors whuch are set by the
Boord as awhole Under his letter of appointment, the Chairman receives an annual fee of £125,000 The other Non-Executive Directors
receive an annual fee of £45,000 In addition, the chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration and Quality Committees receive an annugl fee of
£7,500 All Non-Executive Directors receive reimbursement of business expenses incurred in the proper performance of their duties Fees
for the Chairrman and other Non-Executive Directors remain at the level set at the time of the flotation in 2006
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The appointrent of each of the Non-Executive Directors 1s terminable on one month's notice, 1s subject to the retirement by rotation
provisions In the Articles and does not give rise ta any entitlement to compensation in respect of their termination

Directors’ Remuneration {oudited)

Compensotion Total Pensian
Sclary Annual Benefits for loss emoluments contnbutions
or fees bonus inkind of office 2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £000
Executive
J Buchan* 430 - 2 - 432 539 64 48
R Midmer 385 - 15 - 400 585 58 58
Non-Executive
R Miles 125 - - - 125 170 - -
C Fisher S3 - - - 53 53 - -
Baroness Morgan of Huyton 53 - - - 53 53 - -
N Hellendoner 53 - - - 53 53 - -
Previous Directors
B Colvin - - - - - 22 - -
JMurphy - - - - - 128 52
K Foulkes™ 85 - 4 393 482 448 - 41
1,184 - 21 393 1,598 2,051 122 199

*  Appanted 1 Januory 2009
* Komma Foulkes salary comprises £75,000n respect of satory and £10,000 taken in heu of pension

Directors’ Interests
The Directors of the Company had the following shareholdings in the Company at each of the balance sheet dates

2010 2009
Numberof  Numberaf
ordinary ordinory
shares of shares of
1p each 1p each
JBuchan 200,307 135,579
R Midmer 80,344 59,173
R Miles 163,837 163,837
C Fisher 100,000 70,000
Baroness Morgan of Huyton 2,222 2,222
N Hollendoner 15,919 15,919
Share Plans {audited)
As ot 30 September 2010 the interests of Directors in share plans are
Earliest
Exercise vesung Expiry
Opening Lopsed Vested Granted Closing Price dote date
PSP
K Foulkes 39,130 39,130 - - - Nil N/A N/A
Share Options
R Midmer 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 £0 84 1/07111 1/07/18
R Midmer 500,000 - - - 500,000 £126 1/07111 1/07/18
R Midmer 500,000 - - - 500,000 £168 1/07111 1/07/18
R Midmer 500,000 - - - 500,000 £2 50 1/01/12 1/01/19
4 Buchan 1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000 £100 1/01112 1/01/19
JBuchan 600,000 - - - 600,000 £150 1/01112 1/01119
J Buchan 600,000 - - - 600,000 £200 1/01/12 1/01/19

The Company's closing share price on 30 September 2010 was 31p, whilst the highest and lowest, during the peried, was 155p and 17p,
respectively
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Executive Committee Remuneration

In 2009 s part of the restructuring of management responsibilities associated with the New Honizons programme, an Executive
Commuttee compromusing the Group’s serior management team waos formed It has been progressively strengthened over the lost
financial year and now comprises four regionat directors and three functional directors responsible for care, HR and finance end other

central services, as well as the two Executive Directors

The remuneration of the Executive Commuttee (in aggregate) excluding Executive Directors i1s shown in the table below

Compensation Totad Pension
Salary Annuol Benefits for loss emeluments contributions
or fees bonus n kind of office 2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £'000 £°000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Executive Committee (Excl Executive Directors) 1,007 63 65 144 1,279 882 131 51
As at 30 September 2010 the interests of Executive Committee members excluding executive directors in share ptans are
Earhest
Exercise vesting Expiry
Openmg Lapsed Vested Gronted Closing price date date
PSP
2008 Award 94,363 94,363 - Nil N/A N/A
2009 Award 1,120,000 119,270 1,000,730
2010 Award 74,103 497,566 423,463

Executive Committee (Excl Executive Directors) 1,214,363 287,736

497,566 1,424,193

Dilution

The current intention 15 to use newly 1ssued shares to satisfy the exercise of all employee awards and executive options

In accordance with ABI guidelines, the Company con 1ssue o maximum of 10% of its 1ssued share copital in a rolling 10 year period to
employees under share plans An additional guideline of 5% applies to discretionary or executive plans As the major awards to Executive
Directors were specifically approved by shareholders, the Committee may not observe this guideline in future The table below shows the

potential dilution If shares were 1ssued to satisfy all current commitments

Share dilution

Addiwenal

Current total dilution

dilution  during year

All share plans (maximum 10%)
Discretionery share plans {(maximum 5%)

4 88% (1 56%)
4 88% 012%
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TSR Chart of Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC

The above chart shows the Group’s refative TSR performance compared aganst the TSR performance of the FTSE Smail Cap index
constituents, excluding Investment Trusts

Christopher Fisher
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
7 December 2010
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the
Members of Southern Cross Healthcare
Group PLC

We have audited the group financial statements of Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC for the peniod ended 30 September 2010 which
comprise the consolidated income statement, the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow staterment, the consolidated
staternent of changes in shareholders’ equity and the related notes The financial reporting framework that hes been applied in therr
preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 30, the directors are responsible for the preparation
af the group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility 1s to audit the group
financial staterments in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland] Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s mermbers as a body in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, In giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit Involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disciosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal risstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This Includes an
assessment of whether the accounting poticies are appropriate to the group’s arcumstances and have been consistently applied

and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation
of the finanaial statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the group financial statements

- give atrue and fair view of the siate of the group’s affairs as at 30 September 2010 and of its loss and cash flows for the period
then ended,

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

» the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the group financial statements are prepared Is consistent
with the group financial statements, and

+ the information given in the Corporate Governance Stctement set out on pages 31 to 36 with respect to nternal control and risk
management systems and about share capital structures 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on whtch we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report In respect of the following

- under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, In our opinien

+ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

+ we have not receved all the information and explonations we require for our audit, or
+ 0 corporate governance statement has not been prepared by the parent company

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

+ thedrectors’ statement, set out on pages 28 to 30, in relation to going concern, and

+ the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the June 2008
Combined Code specified for our review

Gther matter
We have reported separately an the parent company financial statements of Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC for the period ended
30 September 2010 and on the infarmation in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that 1s described as having been audited

X (oo

Randal Casson {Senior Statutoery Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutery Auditors
Mewcastle upon Tyne

7 December 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the period ended 30 September 2010

Period 52 weeks
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ended ended
30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
Note £'m £'m
Revenue 3 9586 9371
Home payroll costs 3 {5578) (5337}
Home running costs 3 (1199) (1128}
Home EBITDAR! before central costs 3 2809 2906
Rent
Charge for rental amounts currently payable (197 0) {187 3)
Charge for future minimum rental increases {513) (518)
Total rent 3 (248 3) {2391)
Home EBITDA? before centra! costs 326 515
Central costs {36 8) (308)
Adjusted EBITDA? before exceptional central costs and
charge for future minimum rental increases 534 725
Exceptional central costs & (63) .
Charge for future minimum rental increases 21 (51 3) (518)
EBITDA (4 2} 207
Loss on disposal of property, plont and equipment and subsidiary undertakings 5 02) %1
Impairment of freehold assets held for sale 5 11) 77N
Onerous contracts ond related iImpairments 5 {115) -
Depreciation 11 (27 1) (216)
Operating loss 3,6 {4l 1) (127)
Finance costs 7 37) (7 9)
Finance income 7 04 08
Loss before taxation (47 &} (19 8)
Toxation creditf(charge) 8 107 (23)
Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the company (367) (221
Pence Pance
Nate per share per share
Loss per share attributable te equity shareholders of the company
Basic 10 (19 51) (1175)
Crluted 10 (19 51) (1175)

All of the above activities relate to continuing operations

The Consolidated Income Statement above represents all the gains and losses incurred by the Group dunng the periods presented and
therefore no separate Consolidoted Statement of Comprehensive Income has been presented

1 EBITDAR represents ecrnings befare interest, tox, depreciation, amortisation, loss on dispesal of property, plant and equipment ond substdiary undertakings, impairment of
freehold assets held for sale, onerous contracts and related impairments, and rent

2 EBITDA represents earnings before interest, tax depreciotion, omortisation, loss on dispasal of property, plant and equipment end subsiciary undertakings, mparment of
freehold ossets held for sate ond onerous contracts and related iImparrments

3 Adjusted EBITDA represents EBITDA after adding back exceptional central costs ond the charge for future minimum rental increoses
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 30 September 2010
30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
Note £'m fm
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plont and equipment 1 1184 1114
Goodwill 12 2192 2192
Deferred tox assets 23 252 147
Other non-current assets 14 34 34
Tota! non-current assets 3662 3487
Current assets
Cash and cash equwvalents 15 12 318
Trade receivables 156 326 377
[nventories 17 11 11
Property assets held for scle 13 140 465
Other current assets 16 213 89
Total current assets 702 1260
Total assets 3 436 & 4747
LIABILITIES
Current iabilitres
Short-term financial abilities 19 {06) {21 5)
Trade and other payables 18 {937) (97 9)
Provistons and similar obligations 20 (23) (0 6)
Total current Labilities (36 6) (1200)
Non-current kabilities
Long-term financial habilities 19 (60) (617)
Provisions and simitor obligations 20 187 123
Deferred government grants {(24) {29
Future munimum rental increase accrual 21 {260 8) (209 5)
Total non-current habilities {287 9) (266 4)
Total iabilities 3 {384 5) (386 4)
Net assets 3 519 883
Equity
Share copitol 24 19 19
Share premium 1615 1615
Accumnulated deficit (111 5) (75 1)
Total equity 519 883

anfral statements on p@s to 77 were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 December 2010

ax\O\La_

R Midmer
Finance Director

Registered Number 05328138
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the period ended 30 September 2010

Period 52 weeks

o
=)
=1
w
2
o
k=]
=]
o
a
=
5
a
2
Q.
g
W
o
I
=3
o
3
o
3
=
o
o
=
=%
=
a
2
"
w

ended ended
30 Sept 27 Sept
201¢ 2009
Note £'m £'m
Cash flows from operations
Cash generoted from operations 25 334 875
Interest receved 02 08
Interest and bank loon arrangement fees paid 37) {131
Tax (pad)/received 02) 156
Net cash generated from aperations 297 90 8
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchose of subsidiary undertakings net of cash ocquired - a7
Sales of subsidiary undertakings ) 255 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (351) (653}
Receipts from the sale of property, plant, equipment and other assets 5 57 204
Net cash used in investing activities {39) (256)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings (88 8) (759)
New borrowings 330 411
Capital element of finance leases 27 (06) {0 8)
iNet cash used tn financing actvities (56 4) (356)
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (306) 296
Opening cash and cash equivalents 318 22
Closing cash and cash equivolents 15 12 318

Note included within the purchase of property, plant and equpment 1s development expenditure on new properties totolkng £2 3m {2009 £18 1m)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Shareholders’ Equity

For the period ended 30 September 2010

Share Share Accumuleted Total

capital premiurm defiait equity

£'m £'m £m £'m

At 28 September 2008 19 1615 {533) 1101
Loss aktributable to ordinary shareholders - - (221) 221)
Shore-based payments {including deferred tax of £0 1m) - - 03 03
At 27 September 2009 19 1615 (751} 883
Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders - - (367) (367)
Shore-based payments (including deferred tax of £0 im) (note 31) - - 03 03

At 30 September 2010 19 1615 {1115) 519
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 September 2010

1 General Information
Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC (the Company’) and its subsidianes {together ‘the Group’) are engaged in the operation of care
homes for the elderly and the provision of specialist services for people with physical and/or learning disabilities

The Company 15 a public imited company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom whose shares are listed and traded on the
London Stock Exchange (Registered number 05328138) The address of 1ts registered office 1s Southgate House, Archer Street, Darlington,
County Durham DL3 6AH

The Group prepares its financial mformation for the financial year ending on 30 September of a given calendar year
The consolrdated financial statements of the Group represents the following

Period ended 30 September 2010

The consaldated financial information of Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC, including

» the consolidated financial information of Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC and its subsidianes for the pernod from 28 September
2009 to 30 September 2010

52 weeks ended 27 September 2009

The consolidated financial information of Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC, including

+ the consolidated financial information of Southern Cross Healtheare Group PLC and its subsidianes for the period from 29 September
2008 to 27 September 2009

The principal subsidiaries within the Group are disclosed in note 34

2 Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below These policies
have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated

2 1 Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements hove been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs’)
as adopted by the European Union, and International Financia! Reporting Interpretations Committee CIFRIC'}Y interpretations and the
Companies Act 2006, as applicable to Companies reporting under IFRS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the tistorical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain
financial assets and financial labilities (inctuding dervative instruments) at far value through profit or loss

At the start of the financial peniod, the Group changed its mternal reporting cycles and now reports on g calendar monthly basis
(previously the Group reported 13 periods of 4 weeks) The results for the period ended 30 September 2010 are therefore for a penod
of 368 doys (2009 364 days)

The following new standards, amendments and interpretations, which are inissue at the balance sheet date but not yet effective, have
not been applied in these financial statements

Effective for periods commencing on or after
+ [FRS9 ‘Financial instruments’ 1 Jonuary 2013
[AS24 Revised ‘Related party disclosures’ 1 January 2011
Amendrment to IFRS7 ‘Financiolinstrurnents Disclosures’ 1 July 2011
« Amendment to IFRIC14 ‘Pre-payments of a Mimimum Funding Requirement’ 1 January 2011
+ IFRIC18 ‘Trensfer of Assets from Customers' 30 October 2009
+ [FRIC19 ‘Extinguishing Finanaial Liabilities with Equity Instruments’ 1 July 2010
+ Annuabimprovermnents 2010 1 Januoary 2011

1t 1s considered that the above standards, amendments and interpretations will not hove o significant effect on the results or net assets
of the Group but may increase the level of disclosure to be made in the financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

2 Accounting Policies (continued)

Frormn 28 September 2009, the following standards, amendments and interpretations became effective and were adopted by the Group

« IFRS8 'Operating segments’

« JAS1 Revised ‘Presentation of financial statements’

+ 1AS23 Revised ‘Borrowing costs’

+ 1AS27 Revised ‘Consolidated and separate financial staternents’

« IFRS1 Revised ‘First time adoption of IFRS

« IFRS3 Revised ‘Business combinations’

+ IFRIC13 ‘Custormer Loyalty Programmes’

« IFRIC14 ‘The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset’

« IFRIC1S ‘Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate’

+ IFRIC16 ‘Hedges of o Net Investment Including Foreign Operations’

- Amendment to [AS29 ‘Financial instrurnents Recognition and measurernent’, and IFRS?7 ‘Financial instruments Disclosures’ on the
reclassification of financial assets

+ Amendment to [FRICS and 1AS39 regarding embedded dervatives

= Amendment to IFRS1 ‘First ime cdoption of [FRS’ and IAS27 ‘Consolidated and separate finanaal statements' on the cost of an
investment In a subsidiary, jointly controllied entity or associate

+ Annual improverents to IFRSs (2008}

+  Amendment to [AS32 ‘Financial instruments Presentation’ and [AS1 ‘Presentation of financial statements on puttable financial
nstruments and obligations ansing on liquidatior’

- Amendment to [FRS2, ‘Share-based payments’ on vesting conditions and cancellations

+ Annual improvements 2009

+ Amendment to IFRS2 ‘Share-based payments - Group cash-settled share-based payment transactions’

- Amendments to IFRS]1 for additional exemptions

+ Amendments to 1AS32 ‘Fingncial instruments Presentation on classification of rights sssues’
Amendment to IAS39 ‘Financial iInstruments Recognition and measurement’ on eligible hedged items

« IFRIC17 ‘Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners’

The adoption of these standards, amendments and interpretations has not had a significant impact on the Group's result for the year
or equity |

2 2 Sigmficant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

In order to prepare these consolidated financiol statements in accordance with the accounting policies below, management has used
estimates and yjudgements to estoblish the amounts ot which certan items are recorded Cntical accounting estimates and judgements
are those which have the greatest impact on the consolidated financial statements and require the most difficult, subjective and cormplex
Judgements about matters that are inherently uncertain and are set out below

o} Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the
acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition Goodwill represents the goodwill for a portfolic of homes, which have been allocated to
a group of cash generating units which are split on a segmental basis

The Group determines whether goodwill 1s impaired on at least an annual basis This requires an estimation of the volue in use of the
segment to which the goodwillis allocated Estimating the value in use amount requires management to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the segment and to select a suitable discount rote to caleulate the present value of those cash flows
Further details are given in note 12 Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed

b) Property Assets Held for Sale

Property assets are freehold properties acquired through acquisitions or developed by the Group that are expected to be sold within one
year All property assets held for resale are measured at the lower of carrying value and fair value, less costs to sell Deterrmining the fair
value of the property assets requires valuation and estimation techruques to be used When assessing the fair value of each property,
management consider a number of factors including estimated sale price, internal valuations and future expected yields Any impairment
charges are recogmised in the income stotement

¢} Onerous Leases and Contracts

Provisions are made for future operating lease payments of vacant care homes for the full remaining lease term or up to the point at
which the lease 1s expected to be sublet and for amounts in respect of an onerous contract In calculating provisions for future lease
payments of vacant care homes, the Group has estimated future lease payments and other associated costs over the remaining period
of the lease, and the best estimate of amounts required to settle the contract Furthermore, a suitable discount rote to calculate the
present value of the future cash flows has been selected
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2 Accounting Policies {continued)

d) Leases

Judgement is required in the initial classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases Assets held under finance leases,
which transfer to the Group substantially all the nsks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised atinception
of the lease, with a corresponding Liability being recagrused for the value of the leased asset or, If lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful economic life or the lease term

All other leases are considered to be operating leases The land and buildings elements of a lease of land and buildings are considered
separately for the purpose of lease classification, with the lease of land classified as an operating lease Operating leases and rentals
payable are charged in the income statement on a straight-ine basis over the lease term The total committed cost 1s determined and
amortised on ¢ straight-line basis over the lease term The charge for rentals currently payable 1s the actual amount payable, in the
period, by the Group for its operating leases The charge for future minimum rental increases reflects the impact of recognising rental
Increases on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Sate and leaseback transactions
When o sale and leaseback results in a finance lease, any gon on the sale s deferred and recogmised as income over the lease term
Any loss on the sale 1s immediately recogrised as an impairment loss when the sate occurs

If the leaseback 1s classified as an operating lease, any gain 1s recognised immediately If the sale and leaseback terms are dermonstrably

at fair value Otherwise, the sale and leaseback are accounted for as follows

« if the sale price is below fair value, any profit or lass is recognised immediately except that, if the loss 1s compensated for by future
lease payments at below market price, it 1s deferred and amortised i proportion to the lease payments over the penod for which
the asset 1s expected to be used,

+ if the sale price 15 above fair value, the excess over fair value 1s deferred and amortised over the useful lfe of the asset,

+ 1f the fair value of the asset 1s less than the carrying amount of the asset at the date of the transaction, the difference 1s recognised
immediately as a loss on the sale

2 3 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries) mode up to 27 September 2009 and 30 September 2010 Control s actweved where the Company has the power to
govern the financaial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities The existence and effect of patential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity

The purchase method of accounting 15 used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group On acquisition, the assets and
Labilities and contingent hobilives of a subsidiory are measured at therr fair values ot the date of acquisition Where the fair volues of net
assets acquired are based on provisional assessments pending final determination of certain assets and iabilities, provisional goodwill

15 recorded Intangible assets in acquired companies which concern resident contracts are recognised and amortised over perteds of up

to three years Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the Identifiable net assets acquired 1s capitalised as goodwaill
Goodwill 1s not amortised, instead impairment tests are undertaken annually, and any impairment 1s charged to the income statement
Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired (1 e discount on acquisition) is credited
to the incorme statement in the period of acquisition

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the consclidated income statement frem the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropricte

2 4 Revenue Recognition
Revenue comprises the far value of fee incorme relating to the provision of care services, net of price reductions directly related to sales
Fee income comprises care home fees which are recogrised when delivery of service 1s completed

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it 1s probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group

2 5 Home Payroll Costs
Home payroll costs represent payroli costs directly incurred at home level, including costs incurred in respect of the use of agency labour

2 6 Home Running Costs
Home running costs represent costs of items directly incurred at home level, including food and kitchen supplies, medical supplies,
utilities, maintenance and other running costs of the home

2 7 Home EBITDAR Before Central Costs
Home EBITDAR before central costs represents profitability at home level after taking account of home payroll and home running costs,
but before rental charges on operating leases, central costs and depreciation on home assets

2 8 Central Costs

Central costs represent costs of head office support functions, including central payroll costs, other costs mot directly attributable to
homes and certain other payroll costs
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

2 Accounting Policies (continued)

2.9 EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA

EBITDA represents earrungs before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and
subsidhary undertakings, onerous contracts and related imparments and impairment of freehold assets held for sale Adjusted EBITDA
represents EBITDA after adding back exceptional centrol costs and the charge for future minimum rentolincreases

The Group believes that EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA (and measures derived therefrom including Horme EBITDAR before central costs
and Home EBITDA before central costs) faciitate operating performance comparisons from penod to period and company to company
by eliminating potential differences caused by vanations in capital structures {offecting finance ncorne ond costs), tax positions, the
age and book depreciation of property, plant and equipment (affecting relative depreciation expense) and ntangtble assets identified
(affecting amortisation expense)

2 10 Exceptional Costs
Exceptional costs are events or transactions that fall within the octivities of the Group and which, by virtue of therr size or iIncidence,
have been disclosed in order to iImprove o reader's understanding of the financial information

2 11 Segmentol Reporting

Dunng the period, the Group has adopted the requirements of IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ Based on the requirements of IFRS 8, the
Directors consider the Group to have two reportable segments, Elderly Care and Specialist, which remain unchanged from those reported
ot 27 September 2009 Further detars are provided in note 3 on page 56

2 12 Share-based Compensation

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees 1s measured by reference to the fair value at the date ot which they are granted
and 1s recognised as an expense over the vesting penod, which ends on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled
to the award Fair vatue 1s determined by an external valuer using an appropnate pricing model In valuing equity-settled transactions,
no account I1s taken of any vesting conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company {market conditions)

No expense Is recognised for awards that do not ultimatety vest, except for awards where vesting 1s conditional upon a market condition,
which are treated as vesting irespective of whether or not the market condition 1s satisfied, provided that all other performance
conditions are satisfied

At each balonce sheet date before vesting, the cumulative expense Is calculated, representing the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and management’s best estimate of the achievement or otherwise of non-market conditions, number of equity instruments that
wilt ultimately vest or in the case of an instrument subject to a market condition, be treated as vesting as described above The mavernent
in cumulative expense since the previous balance sheet date 1s recogrised in the income statement, with a corresponding entry in equity

2 13 Denivative Financial Instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instrurnents such as interest rate caps and collars to hedge its nsks associated with interest rate
fluctuations Such dernvative financial instruments are initially recogrused at faw vatue on the date on which a derivative contractis
entered into and are subsequently measured at fair value

Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value 1s positive and as liabilities when the fair value 1s negative Fair value movements
are recegnised in the ncome statement

2 14 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equiprment 1s stated at tustorical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses Cost
includes the onginal purchase price of the asset and costs attnbutoble to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended
use Borrowing costs attributoble to assets under construction are recogrised as an expense as incurred No depreciation s charged
on assets under construction

Depreciation i1s provided on alt property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value
based on prices prevaiting at the balance sheet dote, of each asset on a straight-line bosis over its estimated useful life as follows
+ Freehold bulldings - 2% per annum
Short leasehold property - over life of lease
Motor vehicles - 25% per annum
+ Fixtures and fittings - 14% per annum
Computer equipment - 33%:% per annum
The assets' restdual values and useful ives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balonce sheet date Imparrment reviews
are carried out at a cash generating unit level, except where management becorne aware of o specific osset that 1s impared within a
cash generating urit

An gsset’s carrying amount 1s written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount Gains and losses on disposals are recognised in the income staterment
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2 Accounting Policies (continued)

215 Intangibles

Other Intangibles

Intangwble assets are carned at cost less accumulated amortisation and iImpairment charges

An intangible asset acquired as part of a business combination 1s recognised outside of goodwill If the asset 1s separable or anises from
contractual or other legal nghts and its fair value can be measured reliobly

2 16 Employee Benefit Costs

Staff costs cornprise salanes, wages and pensiens for the Group's staff as well as other staff costs The Group operates defined contribution
pension plans, which are plans under which the Group pays fixed contnbutions into a separate entity The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
service In the current and prior penods Contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses as they fall due

2 17 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable volue Cost is determined using the first-in first-out {FIFO} method
Where necessary, impairment is made for obsolete, slow moving and defective stocks

2 18 Taxation Including Deferred Tax

The tax credit or expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax The tax currently payable 15 bosed on taxable
profit for the period Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Income statement because it excludes items of Income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group’s
Lability for current tax s calculated using tax rates that have been in force during the period

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet hability method Deferred tox liabilites are generally recogrused for all taxable temporary differences ond deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utiised Such assets and habilities are not recegrised If the temporary difference anses frem goodwili or from the inibial recogrtion (other
than in @ business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that offects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax labilities are recogrised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidianes, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference witl not reverse n the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax ossets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utiised Deferred tax s calculated at the
average tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the hability 1s settled or the asset I1s reglised

Deferred tax is chorged or credited in the iIncome statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to reserves,
in which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in reserves

2.19 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash and balances in accounts at no or short notice

2 20 Finance Costs
Finance costs include interest and amortisation of loan arrangement fees Loan arrangement fees are amortised evenly using the
effective rate method

2 21 Finance Income
Fimance Income 1s accrued on a Lime basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable

2 22 Receivables

Trade recewvables defined in accordance with 1AS 39 are recorded mitially ot fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less prowision for impairment for any doubtful emounts A provision for impairment of trade
recevables s established when there s evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal
terrns of the recevables The aomount of the prowision is the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present vatue
of future cash flows discounted at the effective Interest rote The movement i the prowision I1s recognised in the Income statement

Any other receivables are recogrused at their oniginal amount less an altowance for any doubtful amounts An ollowance 1s made when
collection of the full amount 1s no longer considered probable
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

2 Accounting Policies (continued)

2 23 Other Payables

Other payables pnmarily compnse holiday poy liabilities, other taxes and interest payable, which are meosured ot the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settte the obligation

2 24 Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at thew far value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all aitached conditions Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the reloted assets

2 25 Trade Payables
Trade payables are recogrised imitially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

2 26 Borrowings

Borrowings are recogrised initially ot fair value, net of transaction costs incurred Berrowangs are subsequently stated at amortised cost,
any difference between the proceeds (net of transoction costs) and the redemption value 1s recogrised in the iIncome statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method

2 27 Share Capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

2 28 Dividend Distribution
Final dvidend distribution to the Company's Shareholders 1s recognised as a iability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company's Shareholders Intenm dividends are recogrused when paid

Financial Risk Management

2 29 Financial Risk Factors

The Group's activities expose It to a vantety of financial risks market risk (including cash flow interest rote nsk), hquidity nsk, and credit nisk
The Group’s overall nisk management strategy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance

Risk managerment 1s monitored by the Group Risk Management Commuttee under policies approved by the Board of Directors

2 30 Market Risk

Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk

The Group's interest rate nsk anses from long-term borrowings which ore 1ssued at vanable rates that expose the Group to cash flow
nterest rate risk

The interest exposure of the Group 1s managed within the constraints of the Group's business plan and the finoncial covenants under its
foclives The Group aims to reduce exposure to the effect of interest rate moverments by hedging an appropriate amount of interest rate
exposure The impact of movements in Interest rates 1s manoged, where considered appropriate, through the use of floating rate debt
and interest rate caps and collars

The Group has performed calculotions to analyse its interest rate exposure taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing
positions and alternative finanoing Bosed on these scenanos, the Group colculotes the impact on profit and loss of a defined interest
rate shift The scenarios are run only for habilities that represent the major interest-bearing positions

The impact on post tax profit of a 1% shift would be a maxirmum increase of £0 8m (2009 £0 6m) or decreose of £0 8 (2009 £06m),
respectively

2 31 Liquidity Risk
The policy of the Group has throughout the period been to raintain a mix of short and long-term borrowings with short-term flexibility
achieved through overdraft and revolving credit facilities
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2 Accounting Policies (continued)

2 32 Credit Rusk

Credit risk 1s managed on a Group bosis Credit nisk anses from cash and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to residents, including outstending recervables For banks and financial institutions, only institutions with a short-term credit
rating, as determined by Moody’s, of P-1 are accepted

2 33 Capital Risk Management

The Group's chjectives when managing copital are to sofeguard the Group’s ability to continue os a going concern in order to provide
returns for Shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the omount of dividends paid to Shareholders, return capitai
to Shareholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

The Group's short-term objective 15 to reduce its debt During the period the Group has continued to pursue its policy of reducing debt by
disposing of freehold assets, making repayments of bank loans and not proposing to pay a final dividend Further information regarding
the Group's financiol liobdities and undrewn facilities are set out in note 22 and the movement in net debt positian 1s shown in note 27

2 34 Fair Value Estimation
Interest rate cap and collar contracts have been marked to market to produce farr value figures

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade recevables and payables are assumed to approximate therr fair values The farr value
of long-term borrowings approximate to the carrying value reported 1n the balance sheet, as the majonty are vanable rote borrowings

2 35 Operating Lease Rental Increases

The majority of the Group’s homes are subject to operating rental lease ogreements which incorporate future increases to rental amounts
currently payable The Group's longer-term cash position depends upon it continuing to increase Adjusted EBITDA ahead of future
increases to rental amounts currently payable
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

3 Segmental Analysis

During the period, the Group has adopted the requirements of IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ The standard requires the reporting of

segmental information in line with the information reviewed regularly by the ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ (CODM) The Group has
concluded that the CODM s the Executive Committee The operating segments have been identified as the four geographical segments
within the Elderly Care business and the Specialist segrment Management consider the aggregation criterio of IFRS 8 have been met for
the operating segments within the Elderly Care business and therefore the reportable segments remain unchanged to those reported at
27 September 2009, being Elderty Care and Specialist Revenue, loss before taxation and total equity of the Group are wholly ottributable

to the operation of care homes and arise solely within the Umited Kingdom

Pernod ended 30 September 2010

Elderly Care Specialist Total
Number Number Number
Available beds ~ overage
Acquisitions 238 - 238
Continuing operations 37,363 930 38,293
Segment available beds 37,601 9230 38,531
Occupied beds
Acquisitions 81 - 81
Continuing operations 31,864 734 32,598
Segment occupied beds 31,945 734 32,679
Elderly Care Specialist Total
% % %
Occupancy - average
Acquisitions 340 - 340
Continuing operations 8513 789 851
Segment occupancy 850 789 848
£ £ £
Average weekly fee
Acquisitions 587 - 587
Continuing operations 545 1,086 558
Segment average weekly fee 545 1,086 558

Average occupancy for the Group’s mature homes (excluding new developments, or refurbished hormes that have been trading for less

than 12 months) was 86 1% (2009 88 4%)

Acquisitions relate to four homes acquired duning the period through agreerments to lease

Following a review of double occupancy rooms, the Group has reclossified 1,303 rooms as single occupancy As at the beginning of FY11,
this will have the netimpact of reducing the number of available beds across the Group by 1,303 beds to 37,300 For FY10, this amendment

to available beds would hove had the effect of increasing average occupancy for the Group from 84 8% to 878%
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3 Segmental Analysis (continued)
52-week period ended 27 September 2009

Elderly Core Specialist Total
Number Number Number
Available beds - average
Acquisitions 370 - 370
Continuing operations 36,364 930 37,294
Segrment available beds 36,734 930 37,664
Occupied beds
Acquisitions 178 - 178
Continuing operations 32,080 768 32,848
Segment occupied beds 32,258 768 33,026
Elgterly Care Specialist Total
% % %
Occupancy — average
Acqguisitions 481 - 481
Continuing operations 882 826 881
Segment occupancy 878 826 877
£ £ £
Average weekly fee
Acquisitions 616 - 616
Continuing operations 532 1,097 545
Segment average weekly fee 533 1,097 546
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

3 Segmental Analysis {continued)
Primary Reporting Format — Business Segment results for the period ended 30 September 2010 were as follows

Elderly Care Speciclist Totol
£'m £'m £'m

Revenue
Acquisitions 25 - 25
Continmng operations 914 2 419 956 1
Segment revenue 9167 419 958 6
Home payroll costs
Acquisitions (20) - 20)
Continuing operations {5297) (261) {555 8)
Segment Home payroll costs {(5317) (261) {557 8)
Home running costs
Acquisitions 03) - {0 3)
Continuing operations {1151 (45 (1196)
Segment Home running costs {115 4) (4 5) (119 9)
Home EBITDAR before central costs
Acquisitions 02 - 02
Continuing operations 2694 113 2807
Segment Home EBITDAR befare central costs 2696 113 2809
Home EBITDAR before central costs {%)
Acquisitions 80 - 80
Continuing operations 295 270 294
Segment Home EBITDAR before centrol costs (%) 294 270 293
Total rent
Acquisitions 21) - {2.1)
Continuing operations (237 8) (8 4) {246.2)
Segment rent (239 9) (8 4) {248.3)
Home EBITDA before central costs
Acquisitions (19) - {19
Continuing operations 316 29 345
Segment Home EBITDA before central costs 297 29 326
Other expenses
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and subsidiary undertakings 02) - (02)
Imparment of freehold assets held for sale - (11) 11)
Onerous contracts ond related impairments (24) (91) {11 5)
Depreciation 257 (14) (271)
Central payroll costs (200) ©c9) (20 9)
Exceptiona! centrol costs {6 3) - 6 3)
Unallocated expenses
Central costs {9 6)
Operating loss {64 1)
Segments assets and liabilities
Segment ossets 4089 275 436 4
Segment habilities {358 2) (19 5) (377 7)
Net segment assets 507 80 587
Unallocated lLiabilities (68)
Total net assets 519
Other segmental items
Copital expenditure
- Property, plant and equipment 290 15 305
- Development expenditure 15 - 15
Total segmentel capital expenditure 305 15 320
Unallocated copital expenditure 38

Totol 358
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3 Segmental Analysis (continued)
Unallocated labiities comprise non-current borrowings of £6 Gm, current borrowings of £0 6m and denvatives of £0 2m
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The analysis above includes the charge i the period for future muinimum rentol Increases Excluding the impact of this charge,
Home EBITDA before central costs is as follows

Elderly Care  Specialist Total
£'m £'m £'m

Home EBITDA before the charge for future minmmurm rental increases and central costs
Acquisitions (10 - (10
Continuing operations BO3 46 849
Segment Home EBITDA before the charge for future minimum rental increoses and central costs 793 46 839
The segment results for the 52-week period ended 27 September 2009 were as follows

Eiderly Care Specialist Total

£m £m £m

Revenue
Acquisiions 57 - 57
Continuing operotions 8876 438 9314
Segment revenue 8933 438 9371
Home payroil costs
Acquisitions (40) - %0
Continuing operations (501 8) (279) {5297}
Segment Home payroll costs (505 8) (279 (5337}
Home running costs
Acquisitions (02) - {02)
Continuing operations (108 0) (4 6) (112 6)
Segment Home running costs {108 2) (4 6) (112 8)
Home EBITDAR before central costs
Acquisitions 15 - 15
Continuing operations 2778 113 2891
Segment Home EBITDAR before central costs 2793 113 2906
Home EBITDAR before central costs (%)
Acquisitions 263 - 263
Continuing operations 313 258 310
Segment Home EBITDAR before central costs (%) 313 258 310
Total rent
Acquisitions (24) - (2 4}
Continuing aperations {227 8) (89) (2367)
Segment rent (2302) (89) (2391)
Home EBITDA before central costs
Acquisibiens 09} - {0 9)
Continuing operations 500 24 52 4
Segment Home EBITDA before centrol costs 491 24 515
QOther expenses
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and subsidiary undertckings (3 5) 06) 41)
Impairment of freehold assets held for sale Gh (26} (77
Depreciation {20 4) 12) (216)
Centrai payrolt costs (21 8) (0 8) (226}
Unollocoted expenses
Central costs (82}

Operating loss {127}
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

3 Segmental Analysis (continued)
Segments assets and habilities*

Elderly Caore Specialist Total
£'m £'m £'m
Segment assets 4380 367 4747
Segment liabilitres (3310) (130) (344 0)
Net segment assets 1070 237 1307
Unollocated habilities (42 4)
Total net assets 8813
Other segmental items
Capital expenditure
- Property, plant and equipment 266 17 2813
- Development expenditure 167 - 167
Total segmental capital expenditure 433 17 450
Unollocated capital expenditure 19
Total 469

Unallocated liabilities comprise of non-current borrowings of £41 0m, current borrowings of £0 6m, current tax of £0 4m and dernvatives
of £04m

The analysis above includes the charge in the penod for future minimurm rental iIncreoses  Excluding the impact of this charge, Home EBITDA
before central costs 15 as follows

Elderly Care Specialist Total
£'m Em £'m

Home EBITDA before the charge for future minimum rentol increcses and central costs
Acquisitions 01} - o1
Continuing operations 990 44 103 4
Segment Home EBITDA before the charge for future mimirmum rental increases and central costs 989 44 1033

4 Exceptional Costs
Period 52 weeks

ended ended

30 Sept 27 Sept

2010 2009

£'m f'm

Exceptional costs 63 -

Exceptional costs relate to the internal change programme ‘New Honzons’, which was announced at the end of the previcus financiat
year and other exceptional costs In respect of New Horizons, £5 3m has been incurred to date with a further £0 2m being prowided at
30 Septernber 2010 1in accordance with [AS 37 (note 20) The total costs assocated with New Horizons are expected to be £6m with the
majonty of the remoining costs anticipated to be incurred during the first half of FY2011 Other exceptional costs of £1 Om were incurred
dunng the pericd, the majority of which related to costs incurred n respect of a review of the Group's operating lease portfolio

5 Sale of Subsidiary Undertakings, Property, Plont and Equipment, Impairment of Freehold Assets Held for Sale and Onerous
Contracts and Related Impairments

Duning the period the Group disposed of subsidiary undertakings for net cash consideration totalling £25 5m The related assets had a
net book volue of £25 7m, resulting in a loss on disposal of £0 2m

Duning the pertod the Group disposed of freehold assets for net cosh consideration totalling £5 7m which wos equal to the book value of
the assets

Further freehold assets were sold for a deferred cash consideration of £6 6m, being equal to the book value of the assets

Impairment of Freehold Assets Held for Sale
The Group has reviewed the carrying values of its freehold properties Following this review, a number of properties were found to have
a fair value less than their carrying value As aresult the carrying value of the related freeholds has been wntten down by £1 1m

Onerous Contracts and Related Impairments
During the period, management took the decision to close two of its homes, as a result o charge of £11 5m has been recognised in respect
of onerous contracts and included £0 9m of related impawment charges Further disclosure 1s included in note 20 below
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6 Operating Loss

Period 52 weeks
ended ended
30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
£m fm
The following items have been included in arrving at operating loss
Staff costs {note 28} 5645 548 2
Operating lease rentals - land and buildings 2483 2391
Depreciation of property, plant ond equipment - owned assets (note 11) 265 210
Depreciation on assets held under fingnce leases (note 11) 06 06
Consumables expenses through home running costs 120 119
Deprectation of property, plant and equipment includes £0 5m in relation to amoartisation of government grants (2009 £0 5my)
Auditors’ Remuneration
During the period, the Group cbtained the following services from its Auditors ot costs detaled below
Period 52 weeks
ended ended
30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
£'m £'m
Fees payable to the Group’s Auditor for the audit of the Group's annugl financiol statements
{including the consolidated financial staternents}) 02 02
Fees payable to the Group’s Auditor for other services
- the auditing of financial statements of undertakings of the Group pursuant to legislation 01 01
- all other services o1 01
Cther services reloted to fees in respect of advice on the Group's tax offairs
7 Finance Costs and Finance Income
Penod 52 weeks
ended ended
30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
£m £m
Interest poyable on bank borrowings 22 60
Amortisation of lean arrangement fees 11 o7
Movement on fair value of financial instruments - 05
Other finonce costs 04 07
Finance costs 37 79
Interest received on tox repayment (02) ©6)
Moverment on farr value of financial instrurments 02 -
Bank interest receivable - ©2)
Finance income {0 4} {0 8)
Finance costs — net 33 71
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

8 Taxation
Perod 52 weeks
ended ended
30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
£'m £'m
Current tax
- Current period - -
- Prior penod (realisation of taxable losses) - (21 4)
- Prior period (other) {03) (2 8}
Deferred tox (note 23}
- Current period (82) (39
- Impact of rate change 09 -
- Prior penod (realisation of taxable losses) - 214
- Pnor penod (reversal of deferred tox asset) (03) 97
- Prior period (other) (28) 7
Taxation (credit)/charge (107) 23

The tox for the period 1s higher than the average stondard rate of carporation tax in the United Kingdom (28%) (2009 28%} The differences

are explaned below

Period 52 weeks

ended ended

30 Sept 27 Sept

201c 2008

£'m £'m

Loss before taxation (47 4} (198

Loss before taxation multiphed by the stundord rate of corporation tox in the United Kingdom of 28% (2009 28%) (13 3) (55)
Effects of

Amounts in respect of prior periods {3 4) 62

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 07 02

Impairment - other 03 22

Loss on disposal - other 01 o8

Taox losses ansing not recognised 80 -

Rate differences 09 -

Utilisation of tax losses (03) (0 4)

Other 37 {12)

Tax (credit)/charge for the penod {107} 23

There are trading losses of £28 6m (tox effected £8 Om) anising i the period that cannot be recognised due to the uncertainty of therr

economic benefit

The tax charge 1s expected to be lower than the standard rate of tax i future penods due to the availability of tax losses, furthermore

the tax charge will be impacted by the change in the standard rote of corporation tax from 28% to 27% from Apnil 2011

9 Dividends Paid and Proposed

The Directors declared on ntenm dividend of £NiL (2009 £NIl) per ordinory share, totalling £NiIL {2009 £Ni)

The Directors have deaided not to recommend a final dividend for the periad ended 30 September 2010

10 Loss per Ordinary Share

Loss per share 15 calculated by dividing the loss for the period ottributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares outstanding duning the pertod

Diluted loss per share s colculated by dividing the loss for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of erdinary shares thot would be

1ssued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares
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10 Loss per Ordinary Share {continued)

The following reflects the share datc used in the basic and diluted earnings per share calculations

Period 52 weeks

ended ended

30 Sept 27 Sept

2010 2009

£'m £'m

Basic weighted average number of shares (excluding treasury shares) 188,067,377 188,067,377
Dilutve potential ordinary shares

Employee share options Nit Nit

Diluted weighted average number of shares

188,067,377 188,067,377

The Group presents exceptional iterns and charges future minimum renta! Increases on the face of the Income statement Ttems that
are considered exceptional, by virtue of therr size ar Incidence, are disclosed in order to improve q reader’s understanding of the financial
information To this end, additional basic and diluted earnings per share information, 1s also presented on this basis Reconciligtions of
earrings and the weighted average number of ardinary shares used are set out below

Period ended

52 weeks ended

30 Sept 2010 27 Sept 2009
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
per share per share per sharg per share
Esrnings amount amount Earnings amaunt amount
£'m P P £m p p
Loss attributable to ordinary Shareholders (36 7) (19 51) (19 51) (221) {1175) (1179)
Exceptional central costs 63 335 335 - - -
Charge for future minimum rental sncreases 513 27.27 2727 518 27 54 27 54
Taxation impact of above (16 1) (8 56) (8 56) (14 5) (771} (771)
Profit attnbutable to ordinary shareholders before exceptional
central costs and charges for future minimum rental increases
and taxation impact thereof 4.8 255 2,55 152 8§08 808
11 Property, Plant and Equipment
Fixturas, Short Assets
Freehold  fitungs and leasebold Motar under
properties  equipment property vehicles construction Total
£m £'m £'m £m £'m £'m
Cost
At 28 September 2008 90 988 292 53 218 1641
Additions - 252 18 05 194 469
Transfers (& 4) 20 26 - (34 8) (34 6)
Disposals - ¢3) 03) - 02) (08)
AL 27 September 2009 46 1257 333 58 62 1756
Additions - 255 44 04 15 358
Transfers - 30 22 - 52 -
Impairment - 1) 08} - - @9)
Disposals 086 - - 02 - {0 8)
At 30 September 2010 40 1581 391 60 25 2097
Accumulated depreciation
At 28 September 2008 02 376 26 24 - 428
Charge for the period - 195 11 10 - 216
Disposals - (01) on ~ - 02)
At 27 Septernber 2009 02 570 36 34 - 64 2
Charge for the period - 246 15 10 - 271
At 30 September 2010 02 81.6 51 b4 - 913
Net book omount
At 30 S5eptember 2010 38 765 340 16 25 1184
At 27 September 2009 44 687 297 24 62 1114
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

11 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
The net book value of assets held under finance leases totalled £1 Om at 30 Septermber 2010 (2009 £1 6m} The assets related to motor
vehicles and other fixtures and fittings

Followmng management’s decision to close Abbeydale the associated fixed assets were impaired by £0 9m (see note 20) The imparrment
has been recognised within onerous contracts and related impairments in the income statemeny

Transfers of assets under construction of £5 2m relates to the completion of three leasehold homes during the pernod and an extension
of one home, with therr associated costs being transferred to leasehold additions {£2 2m) ond fixtures and fittings (£3 0m)

12 Goodwill

Group £'m
Cost

At 28 September 2008 2185
QOther acquisitions 07
At 27 September 2009 and 30 September 2010 2192

Other acquisitions represent professional costs and assoaated fees in respect of acquisitions completed in the previous finanaial year

Impairment Test for Goodwilt
Goodwill s allocated to the Group’s two business segments as shown below

30 Sept 27 Sept

2010 2009

£m £m

Elderly care 2040 2040
Specialist 152 152
Services relating to corporate finance and acquisitions 2192 2192

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions, as noted above, 1s not being amaortised but tested annually for mpairment The date elected for mparrment
testing 15 30 September unless there 1s a clear indication of ImMpairment

The Group conducts an annual iImpairment test on the carrying value of goodwill, based on the recoverable amount of the group of

cash generating units (‘CGUs’) to which goodwill has been allocated The recoverable amounts of the grouped CGUs are determined from
n-house calculations The key assumptions in the value-in-use calculations are the discount rate applied, the operating margin, whichis
driven by occupancy assurmptions, and the long-term growth rate of net operating cash flows In all cases, the Group prepares cash flow
forecasts derived from the approved budgets for the next 5 years following which it extrapolates cash flows on an estimated growth
rate of 3%, excluding inflation The growth rate applied does not exceed the growth rate for the industry and country in which the

Group operotes

The pre-tax rate used to discount the forecast cash flows for all CGUs 1s 12% This rate represents ¢ pre-tax rate that reflects the market
value of money at the balance sheet date and the nsks specific to the CGU

The long-term operating margin assumed for o CGU's operations is primarily based on post performance ot home level except where
management have a strong belief that a different profit margin can be achieved

As at 30 September 2010 and 27 September 2008, no impoirment charge to goodwilt hos been required

Sensitivity to Changes in Assumptions

For the Elderly Care segment, the value In use exceeds the carrying value of goodwill by approximately £53m The following changes
in assumptions would cause the following changes in the recoverable amount

+ 1% change in average annual occupancy would change the value in use by £108m

+ 1% change in the long-term growth rate would change the value in use by £25m

* 1% change n the discount rate would change the value in use by £33m

For the Specralist segment, the value in use exceeds the carrying value of goodwill by approximately £1m The following changes
in assumptions would cause the following changes in the recoverable amount

* 1% change in average annual eccupancy would change the value In use by £2m

* 1% chonge in the long-term growth rate would change the value in use by £2m

* 1% change in the discount rate would change the value in use by £2m
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13 Property Assets Held for Sale

No of

homes £'m
Cost
At 28 September 2008 11 361
Transfer from assets under construction 4 302
Transfer from freehold assets 8 4
Disposals (3) {165)
Impowrment - (77)
At 27 September 2009 20 465
Disposals (6) (314)
Impairment - 11
At 30 September 2010 14 140

Property assets held for sale consists of 14 freehold properties with a carrying value of £14 Grm which the Group expects to sell in the near

future Four of the homes are inctuded within the Elderly Care segment and ten homes within the Specialist segment

The Group has reviewed the carrying value of properties held for sale on on individual property basis Following this review, a number of

properties were found to have a farr value lower than their carrying value As a result the carrying volue of the properties has been

impaired by £1 1m (2009 £77mj)

14 Other Non-Current Assets

30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
£'m £'m
Other non-current gssets 34 34
Other non-current assets relate to landlord rental security deposits
15 Cash and Cash Equivalents
30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
£m £'m
Cash at bank and in hand 12 318
16 Trade Receirvables and Other Current Assets
30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
F'm £'m
Trade recevables 406 458
Less prowvision for impairment of recevables (80) 81)
Trade receivables - net 326 377
Other receivables 12 17
Prepayments and accrued iIncome 201 72
Other current assets 213 89

The carrying value of trade recewvables and other current assets 1s stated after o provision for impairment of recewvables has been made

The prowision for impairment for trade recevables is calculated on an indwiduat account by account assessment based on past and

current credit hustory There Is no concern over the credit quality of amounts past due not imparred since mast relate to local Government
and for the remainder the nisk 1s spread over a number of unrelated counterparties The Directors consider that the carrying value of trade

receivables and other current assets approximates to their farr value
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

16 Trade Receivables and Other Current Assets {continued)
Movement on the Group prowision for impairment of trade recevables 1s as follows

30 Sept 27 Sept

2010 2009

£'m £'m

Opening 81 60
Provision for recevables impoirment 16 36

Receivables written off during the penad as uncollectible {17) {13}
Closing 80 81

The other classes within trade and other recevables do not contain impaired assets

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above The Group

does not hold any collateral as secunity

Ageing of Trade Receivables

The ogeing analysis of trade recevables and the assaciated proviston for impairment 1s shown below

30 Sept 2010 27 Sept 2009
Provision Provision
Gross for Gross for
value impairment value imparment
£'m £'m £'m £'m
Not yet due 118 - 159 -
Past due 0-60 days 172 (02) 177 (@2}
Past due 61-119 days 34 (02) 46 (0 5)
Past due 120 days 82 (76) 76 (7 4)
406 (80) 458 (8 1)
17 Inventories
30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
£'m Em
Consumables 11 11

The replacement cost of inventory does not differ materially from the costs stated above There were no write-downs of inventory in the

period ended 30 September 2010 or the 52 weeks ended 27 September 2009

18 Trade and Other Payables - Current

30 Sept 27 Sept

2010 2009

£'m £'m

Trade payables 154 166
Other tax and social security payable 126 148
Other payables 256 304
Accruals 401 357
Corporction tax payable - 04
937 979

The Drrectors believe that the carrying value of the current trade and other payabtes approximates to ther fair values as a result of the

short matunty period of the amounts as at the balance sheet dote
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19 Financiol Liabilities ~ Borrowings
a) Short-term Borrowings

30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
£m £'m
Bank loans (secured) - net of arrangement fees totalling £Nil (2009 £0 9m) - 209
Obligatigns under finance leases 06 06
06 215

b) Long-term Borrowings
30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
£'m £m
Bank loans (secured) - net of arrangement fees totalling £1 $m (2009 £0 8m) 56 407
Obligations under finance legses 04 10
60 417

Bank Loans

On 18 May 2010 the Group consalidated Its existing banking arrangements into a revised £50m revolving credit facility Interest on drawn
ameunts 1s charged at margins between 2 75% and 3 25% above LIBOR At 30 September 2010, the Group had £7 Sm drawn on the facility
all of which 1s due for repayment after one year Unamortised arrangernent fees were £1 9m

AL 30 September 2010, the Group had the following interest rate instruments in place

a) Interest rate caps which cap the interest paid on £13 6m of the Group's variable rate debt at 4 62% plus moargin and which expire
nJune 2011

b) Interest rate collars which mean that the Group will pay a maximum of 4 5% plus margin and minimum of 2 57% plus margn
on £14 3m of the Group’s vorable debt and which expire in June 2011

Finance Leases
As at 30 September 2010, the Group hod finance leases due in less than one year of £6 6m (2009 £0 6m), due in one to two years
of £04m (2009 £0 5m) and due in three to five years of £Nil {2009 £05m)

20 Provisions and Similar Obligations

Vacamt Cnerous Other
properties contracts provisions Total
£m £'m £'m £'m
At 29 September 2008 51 43 - 94
Additions 11 29 - 40
Utilised in the peniod (05) - - (05}
At 27 September 2009 57 72 - 12¢%
Additions 24 91 07 122
Utilised in the period (08 (30) {05) (4 1)
At 30 September 2010 75 133 02 210
Analysis of total provisions at 27 September 2009
Current 06 - - 06
Non-current 51 72 - 123
57 72 - 129
Analysis of total provisions at 30 September 2010
Current 13 08 02 23
Non-current 62 125 - 187

75 133 02 210
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

20 Provistons and Similar Obligations {continued)

The provision for vacent properties relates to rents payable on leased properties Dunng the period, £2 4m was charged to the income
statements in respect of a vacant property Of the £75m provision, £1 3m is expected to be utilised within one year with the remaining
£6 2m to be utiised in more than one year

During the period £9 1m was charged to the income statement in relation to an onerous contract Of the provision, £3 Om was utilised in
the peniod with £0 8m due to be utilised within one year and £12 5m 11 more than one year

A further provision of £0 7m has been recognised in the peniod being direct expenses arising from the ‘New Honizons’ chonge programme,
and has been charged to exceptional central costs in accordance with 1AS 37 Of this proviston, £0 5m has been utilised in the period with
the remaining £0 2rm due to be fully utilised within one year

21 Future Mimimum Renta! Increase Accrual

30 Sept 27 Sept

2010 2009

£'m £'m

Future minimum rental increase accrua! 2608 2095

The future minimum rental increase accrual represents the cumulative difference between operating lease charges under IFRS and the
amounts actually payable up to the penod end

An analysis of the moverment durning the period 15 given below

30 Sept 27 Sept

2010 2009

£'m £'m

Opering bolance 2095 1577
Charged to iIncome staternent 513 518
Closing balaonce 2608 2095

22 Finaoncial Instruments
Numerical financial instruments disclosures are set aut below Additional disclosures are set out in the accounting policies relating 1o risk
management

In accordance with IAS 39, ‘Financial Instruments Recegnition and Measurement’, management has reviewed contracts for embedded
dervatives that are required to be separately accounted for If they do not meet certain requirements set out in the standard No such
embedded derivatives were found

Financial Instruments

The Group’s financial instruments, other than deriatives, compnse borrowings, cash and liquid resources and various items such as trade
receivables and trade poyables, that arise directty from its operations The main purpose of these financiol Instruments 1s to manage the
financing of the Group’s operations The Group also enters into denvative transactions The purpose of such transactions 1s to manage the
interest rate nsks ansing from the Group’s operations and its sources of finance

It 15, and has been throughout the period under review, the Group’s policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken
The main nisks ansing from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk ond liquidity nsk The Board reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these nsks and they are summarised below These policies remamed unchanged throughout the periods presented

Currency Risks

The Group 15 based in the United Kingdom, with its operations entirely within the Urited Kingdomn It does not hold any investment in
overseas operations and consequently the balanice sheet 1s not exposed to movements in currency exchange rates The Group does not
have sales or purchase transactions in currencies other than the umt’s functional currency and consequently does not have transactional
CUrrency exposures
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22 Financial Instruments {continued)

Numerical Disclosures

Interest Rate Risk

The Group has both interest beanng assets and abilittles Interest bearning assets comprise only cash balances, which earn interest at o
floating rate of interest tinked to UK Bank base rate The Group’s policy and processes for managing mterest rate risk are explained in the
accaunting policies {note 2 29)

After taking into account interest rate caps and collars entered into by the Group, the interest rate profite of the Group’s financial labibities 1s

30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009

Sterling £m £m
Floating rate borrowings
Bank borrowings 75 633
Fixed rate liabilities
Finance leases 10 16
Total borrowings 85 649
Fixed rote weighted average interest rate, excluding no mterest-paid items (%) 805% 814%
Fixed rote weighted average interest period, excluding no interest-paid items (years} 22 30

The floating rate financial iabilities have compnised
Sterling denominated bank borrowings and overdrafts that bear interest at rates between 2 75% and 3 25% above UK bank base rates

Maturity of Financiol Ligbilities and Undrawn Commitments
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial labilities 1s as follows

30 Sept 27 Sept

2010 2009

£m £m

Within one year 987 123 4
In more than one year, but less than two years 112 436
In more than two years, but less than five years 150 121
More than five years 40 41

1289 1832

Included within the obove 1s £3 1m of expected future interest charges (2009 £5 0m)
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

22 Finoncial Instruments {continued)
The Group’s undrawn commitments expiry date profile 1s as follows

30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
£'m £'m
Within one year - -
In more than one year, but less than two years - 345
In more than two years, but less than five years 297 -
297 345
Financial instruments by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line iterms below
2010
Loans and
recaivables
£'m
Assets as per balance sheet
Cash and ¢cash equivalents 12
Trade receivables 326
Other current assets 12
Other non-current assets 34
384
2010
Liabihities at
fair value
through Other
profit financial
and loss ligbilities Total
£'m £'m £'m
Liatulitres as per balance sheet
Short-term financial liabilities - borrowsngs - 06 06
Long-term financia! habilittes - borrowings - 79 79
Trade and other payables - 679 679
Dervative financicl instruments - interest rate cap ond collor 02 - 02
02 76 4 766
2005
Loans and
recevables
£'m
Assets as per balance sheet
Cash and cash equivolents 318
Trade recevables 377
Other current assets 17
Other non-current assets 34

746
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22 Financial Instruments {continued)

2009
Liabdities ct
fair value
through Cther
profit finaneial
and loss liebilities Total
£'m £'m £'m
Liabilities as per balance sheet
Short-term financial labitities - borrowings - 22 4 224
Long-term financial liabilities - borrowings - 425 425
Trade and other payables - 69 4 69 &
Derivative finoncial instruments - interest rate cap ond collor 04 - 04
04 1343 1347

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of financial assets and financiat abilities recorded ot amortised costin the financial
statements approximate their far values

The interest rate cap and collar ts included within accruals (note 18)

Interest rate cap and collar contracts have been marked to market to produce farr value figures All other far values shown above have
been calculated by discounting cash flows at prevailing interest rates For floating rate bank loans, farr values closely approximate to
book values

The fair value of short-term loans and overdrafts approximate to the farr carrying value because of the short matunty of these
instruments The fair value of long-term borrowings approximate to the carrying value reported in the balance sheet as the majority
are flooting rate

23 Deferred Tax
Deferred tax ts calculated n full on temporary differences under the habiity method using a tax rate of 27% (2009 28%)

The movement on the deferred tox account I1s as shown below

30 Sept 27 Sept

2010 2009

£'m £'m

Opening balance {14 7) (412)
Income and expense (credit)/chorge {note 8) (10 4) 266
Tax charged directly to equity o1) (01
Closing balonce {25 2) {147

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of all tax losses and cther temporary differences giving nise to deferred tax assets where
It1s probable that these assets will be recovered At the period end deferred tax assets of £39 7m (2009 £33 3m) were not recognised

A number of changes to the UK Corporation tax system were announced in the June 2010 Budget Statement The Finance (No 2} Act 2010,
which was substantively enacted on 20 July 2010, ncludes legistation reducing the main rate of corporation tax from 28% to 27% from
1 April 2011 Further reductions to the main rate are proposed to reduce the rate by 1% per annum to 24% by 1 April 2014

The proposed reductions of the main rate of corporation tax by 1% per year to 24% by 1 April 2014 are expected to be enacted separately
each year The overall effect of the changes from 27% to 24%, if these applied to the deferred tax balance at 30 September 2010 would
be to reduce the deferred tax asset by approximately £2 8m (being £24 3m recognised in 2012, £23 3mrecognised in 2013 and £22 4m
recognised in 2014)

The mavements in deferred tax assets and habilities (prior to the offsetting of bolances within the same jurisdiction as permitted by
1A512) during the penod are shown below

Deferred tax assets and ligbilities are only offset where there 1s a legally enforceable nght of offset and there 1s an intention to settle
the balances net
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Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements (continued)

23 Deferred Tax (continued)
Deferred Tax Assets

Accelercted
tax
depreciation Other Total
£'m £m £Em
At 28 Septernber 2009 (161) 14 (147)
Incorme and expense (credit)/charge (79 06 (73)
Tax charged directly to equity - 1) @1
Prior period adjustments (25) (06) 31
At 30 September 2010 (26 5) 13 (25 2)
24 Share Capital
30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
Number Number
Authorised
Ordinory shares of 1p each 300,000,000 300,000,000
£'m £Em
Ordinary shares of 1p each 3 3
Number Number
Allotted, calted up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 1p each 188,067,377 188,067,377
£€m £'m
Ordinary shares of 1p each 19 19
25 Cash Flows from Operations
Reconciliation of operating loss before taxation to net cash flow from operating activities
30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
£'m £'m
Operating loss (44 1) (127}
Adjustments for
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and subsidiary undertakings 02 41
Imparrment of freehold assets held for sale 11 77
Deprecigtion 271 216
Share-based payments 03 02
Changes in working capital (excluding effects of acquisitions and sale of subsidiaries and other businesses)
Becrease In Inventories - 02
{Increase)/decrease Iin trade and other recevables (73} 60
{Decrease)/increase in payables 33} 91
Incregse in future minimum rental accruol 513 518
Increosef{decrease) In provisions 81 {C5)
Cosh generated from operations 334 875
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26 Reconctliation of Net Cash Flow to Movement in Net Debt

30 Sopt 27 Sept
2010 2009
£'m £'m
Net {decrease)/increase in cash for the period (206} 2956
Cash outflow from decrease in debt 564 356
258 652
Non-cash items
New finance leases - (04)
Rolled-up interest - 04)
Moverment in net debt 258 64 4
Opening net debt {331) (97 5)
Closing net debt (7 3) (331)
27 Analysis of Net Debt
At 28 Sept Cash At 30 Sept
2009 flaw 2010
£'m £'m £m
Cosh 3i8 (306) 12
Bark loans due within one year {218} 218 -
finance leases due within one year (0 6) - (06}
Bank loans due after more than one year (415) 340 {75)
Finance leases due after more than one year (10 06 {04)
{64 9) 564 {85)
Net debt (331) 258 (73)
28 Staff Costs
Pariod 52 weeks
endad ended
30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
£'m £'m
Staff costs for the Group during the pertod
Wages ond salanes 5236 5085
Social secunty costs 399 389
Other pension costs 10 08
5645 5482
Staff costs for the Group by function
Home payroll costs - excluding agency and other staff-related costs 543 6 5237
Central payroll costs 209 225
5645 54812

Home payroll costs, as disclosed on the face of the income statement include agency and other staff-related costs Agency ond other
staff related costs totalled £14 2m and £8 Om for the periods ended 30 September 2010 and 27 September 2009 respectively

Average monthly number of people (inciuding Executive Directors) employed

Period 52 weeks
ended ended
30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
Number Nurnber

By activity
Care and ancillary 35,760 35,222
Manogement and administration 2,103 2,107
37,863 37,329
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

28 Staff Costs (continued)

Directors’ Remuneration

A detailed analysis of Directors’ remuneration, Including salanes, performance-related bonuses and share option schemes 1s provided 1n
the remunerotion report on pages 37 to 43 under the heading Directors’ remuneration, which form part of these financial stotements

The total rermuneration of the Directors comprises

Penod 52 weeks

ended ended

30 Sept 27 Sept

2010 2009

£m £'m

Aggregate emoluments 12 19
Compensation for loss of office 04 01
Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes 01 02
17 22

Detatls of the highest paid Director are given in the remuneration report under the heading Directors’ remuneration (audited)
Compensation for loss of office relates to termination benefits

The key management of the Group are deemed to be the Board of Diractors, who have authority and responsibility for planning and
controlbing all sigruficant activities of the Group

29 Contingent Liabilities
The Group has provided guarantees to certain of the Group's landlords and holders of loan notes As at 30 Septermmber 2010, these
guarantees totalled £11 8m (2009 £11 5m)

30 Financial Commitments
At 30 September 2010, and 27 September 2609 the Group had total commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows

30 Sept 27 Sept

2010 2009

£'m E£'m

Within one year 2504 2466
Within one to five years 1,001 6 986 4
Over five years 45243 4,694 2

5,776 3 59272

The majority of operating teases provide for fixed annual Increases at 2 5% or 2 75%, or annual rent increases based on the retail price
index {'RPI'), subject to negotiated caps and floors

Financial commitments, due within one year, under non-cancellable operating leases and analysed by nature of lease terms are included
below

30 Sept 27 Sept

2010 2009

£'m £m

Annual rental increcses based on RPI subject to cap and floor arrangement 632 611
Fixed annual rental increases 144 3 1428
Five-yearly, fixed, rental increases 340 33¢
Annual rental increases bosed on RPI 89 88

2504 2466

31 Share-based Payments
The total charge for share-based payments was £0 3m (2009 £0 2m), all of which relates to equity-settled transactions

2006 Performance Share Plan

The Southern Cross Healthcare Group 2006 Performance Share Plan (the *PSP") was amended on 24 March 2009 by adding an HMRC-
approved section to the plan The PSP is available to Executive Directors and approximately 1,000 members of management Annual
grants are made under the PSP with a value of up to 100% of an indiwidual's salary Vesting of shares is subject to performance conditions
based on earnings per share and, 1n respect of the 2008 awards, total shareholder return Further detals of the vesting condrtions are
given in the remuneration report on page 39
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31 Share-based Payments (continued)
A reconciiation of option movements during the period 1s given below

Period ended 52 weeks ended
30 Sopt 2010 27 Sept 2009
Weighted weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Number price Number price
000 P Q00 P
Outstanding

Beginring of penod 5,139 £Nil 5010 £NIl
Granted 1,866 £Nil 2,515 £NIl
Lapsed (3,334) £Nul {2,386} £NIl
End of pericd 3,671 £Nil 5,139 ENIl

The fair value per option granted and the assumptions used in the calculation are os follows
January October July May May Jonuary
Grant date 2010 2009 200% 2009 2008 2008
Share price ot grant date £155 £127 £148 £1 30 £383 £4 55
Exercise price ENIl ENIL £NI £Nil £NIl £MNi
Number granted 1,735,903 130,000 150,000 2,365,000 370,970 3,719,808
Vesting penod {years} 3 3 3 3 3 3
Expected volotility nia n/a n/a n/a 2900% 29 00%
Contracted life {years) 3 3 3 3 3 3
Risk free rate n/a nio n/a n/a 426% 4 26%
Dividend yield nfa n/o n/a nfa 216% 216%
Fair value per option £155 £127 £148 £130 £6 96 £6 96

January and May 2008 Awards
Options were valued using the Monte Carlo option-pricing model

Expected volatility 1s based on histoncal volatiity of shares in the same sector over the past four years The risk-free rate of returnis the
yield on zero-coupon UK government bonds of a term consistent with assurmed option life

The weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at the end of the period was 3 months

No options were exercisable at 30 September 2010

May, July and October 2009 Awards

The options will become exercisable on attainment of a performance target based on Adjusted EBITDA As such, the expected velatility
15 not applicable and the fair value per option 1s the share price at the grant date

The weighted average remaming contractual life of options cutstanding at the end of the period was 20 months

No options were exercisable at 30 September 2010

January 2010 Award

The options will become exercisable on attainment of a performance target based on Adjusted EPS As such, the expected volatility is
not applicable and the foir value per option 1s the share price at the grant date

The weighted average remaining contractual ife of options outstanding at the end of the perniod was 27 months

No options were exercisable at 30 Septermber 2010

Share Option Plans

Share Option Plans are available to the Cheef Executive and Group Finance Director The plons are similar in design but differ in specific

clauses, reflecting the different timing and arcumstances of each Director’s appointment Further details are given in the remuneration
report on page 39

o)
=
=]
w
e
o
o
2
o
o
pua)
=
=]
3
a
=N
v
@
a
=
o
3
@
3
2
o]
o
2
a
=z
S
=
o
w




4 76 { Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC

Annual Report ond Accounts 2010
Consolidated Financiol Staterments and Notes

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

31 Share-based Payments (continued)
A reconciliation of the Chief Executive and Group Finance Director option movements during the period 1s gven below

Period ended 52 weeks ended
30 Sept 2010 27 Sept 2009
Weighted Weighted
avercge average
exercise exercise
Number price Number price
‘0co [ ‘000 p
Outstanding

Beginning of period 5,500 1.36 - n/a
Granted - n/a 5,500 136
End of period 5,500 136 5500 136

The faw volue of the options granted and the assurmptions used in the calculation are as follows
February
Grant dote 2009
Share price ot grant date £092
Exercise price (weighted average) £136
Number gronted 5,500,000
Vesting period (years) 3
Expected volatility 39%
Contracted life {years) 3
Risk free rate nfa
Dividend yield nia
Fair value per option (wetghted average) £018

Options were valued using the Binomial lattice odel

Expected volatiity 1s based on fustorical volatility of shares in the same sector over the past four years The risk-free rate of return s
the yield on zero-coupon UK government bonds of @ term consistent with assumed option life

The weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at the end of the period was 13 0 months
No options were exercisable at 30 September 2010

32 Related Party Transactions
Except for transactions with subsidiary undertakings, there were no related party transactions dunng the period ended 30 September
2010 Detoils of principal subsidiary undertakings gre given in note 34

33 Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Rewvisions to Banking Facilities

Following recent discussions with the Group’s lenders, revisions to the existing banking arrangements were agreed on 6 December 2010
The Group's facility now comprnses an amortising £65m RCF repayable in September 2012, with the fixed charge covenant relaxed from
1 23xto 11x The first amortisation, of £3 3m, takes place on 1 October 2011
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34 Principal Subsidiery Undertakings

The principal subsidiary undertakings as at 30 September 2010, all of which have a peniod end of 30 Septernber 2010, and 100% of the
ordinary shares are owned and registered in England and Wales {unless otherwise stoted SC = registered in Scotland) and hove been
consolidated in the Group financial staternents, are os follows

Care Home Qperating Comparnies

Intermediate Holding Comparues

APTA Healthcare {UK) Limited

Ashbourne {Eton) Lirmited

Ashbourne Group UK Lirruted (SC)
Ashbourne Homes Limited (SC)

Exceler Health Care Group Limited
Exceler Healthcare Services Limited
Southern Cross BC Opceo Linited
Southern Cross Cymru Limited

Southern Cross Care Homes No 2 Limited
Southern Cross (Focus) Limited

Southern Cross Healthcare Services Limited
Southern Cross Home Properties Limited
Southern Cross (LSC) Limited

Southern Cross Opco Limited

Tnimity Core Limited

APTA Healthcare Limited

Ashbourne Holdings Limited

Ashbourne Limited

CCSX Holdings Lirmited

CCSX Limited

CCSX Ventures Lumited

Southern Cross (Highfield Holdeo) Limited

Southern Cross (3X Holdco) Limited

Southern Cross Bidco Limited

Southern Cross Care Homes Holdings Limited
Southern Cross Care Homes Lirmited

Southern Cross Finance Limited

Southern Cross Healthcare Investments No 1 Limited
Southern Cross Healthcare Investments No 2 Limited
Southern Cross Healthcare Limited
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'Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of Southern Cross
Healthcare Group PLC (Company)

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Scuthern Cross Healthcare Group PLC for the period ended 30 September 2010
which comprise the cornpany balance sheet, company statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and the related notes The finanaal
reporting framework that hos been applied in their preparation 1s applicable low and Internatienal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Unicn and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Comparnies Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 30, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the parent company finanaial staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility 1s to audit the
parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable low and Internatienal Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opiniens, has been prepared for and enly for the company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for ne other purpose We do not, in giving these epinions, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whormn this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit invoives obtaining evidence about the cmounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenat misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the parent company’s aircumstances and have been consistently
opplied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financal statements

In our opinion the parent company financial statements

+ give atrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 30 September 2010,

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Urion and as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006,

= have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

+ the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be qudited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,
and

« thenformation given in the Directors’ Report for the financral year for which the parent company financial statements are prepared 15
consistent with the parent company financiol staterments

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, ar

« the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not In agreement with
the accounting records and returns, or

= certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

= we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audst

Other matter

We have reported separately on the group financia! staterments of Seuthern Cross Healthcare Group PLC for the period ended 30 Septernber
2010

¥ Cesto

Randal Casson (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Newcastle upon Tyne

7 December 2010
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Company Balance Sheet
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As at 30 September 2010
30 Sept 27 Sept.
2010 2009
Note £'m £mn
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investments 2 - -
Other receivables - amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 3 2382 2324
Total non-current assets 2382 2324
Total ossets 2382 232 4
LIABILITIES
Current habilities
Other payables 4 {2 6) {32}
Total current liabilities {26) (32)
Non-current liabilities
Provisions and similar obligations 5 {68) 71)
Total non-current Liabitities {6 8) {71)
Total Liabilities (2 4) {103)
Net assets 2288 2221
Equity
Shore copital 6 19 19
Share prermium 1615 1615
Retained earnings 65 & 587
Total equity 2288 2221
gngiol staterments o es 79 to 82 were approved by the Booerd of Directors on 7 December 2010 and signed on therr behalf by
! A D \J\, ——
R Midmer
Chief Executive Finance Director
in Sh%re%llolders’ Equity J
For the period ended 30 September 2010
Share Retained Total
Share copital premium earmngs equity
£'m £'m £'m £'m
Balance at 28 September 2008 19 1615 535 2169
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders - - 52 52
Balance at 27 September 2009 19 1615 587 2221
Profit attnbutable to ordinary shareholders - - 67 67
Balance at 30 September 2010 19 1615 654 2288

Registered Number 05328138
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Statement of Accounting Policies

The Company's accounting policies are the same as those set out in the statement of accounting policies of the Group financial
statements, except as noted below

Cash Flow Statement

The Company s a holding company and does net hold any bank accounts Transactions such as dividend payments to Shareholders are
paid by subsidiary companies and charged through intercompany accounts Therefore no cash flow staternent has been presented

Fixed Asset Investments
Fixed asset investments are included at cest, less any provision for impairment
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 September 2010

1 Income Statement

Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC Company has not presented Its own income staternent as permitted by Sectien 408 of the Companies
Act 2006 The profit attrbutable to erdinary shareholders for the financial perrod dealt with in the accounts of the Company 1s £6 7m

(2009 £5 2m)

The oudit fee in respect of the Cormnpany was £7,000 (2009 £7,000} The Company has no employees (2009 none) Directors are remunerated
by other Group companies in the current perniod and prior period

2 Investments

Company £°000

At 30 September 2010 and 27 Seplember 2009 3

The principal subsidiary undertakings as at 30 September 2010, all of which have a pernod end of 30 September 2010, and 100% of the
ordinary shares are owned and registered in England and Wales (SC = registered in Scotland) untess otherwise stated and have been
conschdated in the Group financicl iInformatron, are given in nate 34 of the Group financal stoternents

Allinvestments are held indirectly via the intermediate holding company, Southern Cross Bidco Lirmited, with the exception of Southern
Cross Healthcare Investments No 1 Limited and Southern Cross Healthcare Investrments No 2 Limited

The Directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying net assets

3 Other Receivables
Amounts due after more than one year

30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
£'m £'m
Amounts due from subsichary undertakings 2382 2324
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings are unsecured Interest is charged at a rate of 4% (2009 5%)
The far value of trade and other recevables is equal to the amounts shown above
4 Other Payables
30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
£'m £m
Corporation tax 26 32
5 Provisions and Similar Obligations
Provisions
£'m
At 27 September 2009 71
Utihsed in the penod {03)
At 30 September 2010 68

Provisions relate to amounts provided in respect of an onerous contract, which 1s expected to be settled in more than one year

o
o
E|

=]
a
E]

-
pas ]
5
a
3
O,
a
wr
=2
=1
=3
&
2
L]
o
=
w
a
3
&
=
)
2
»
L




< 827 Southern Cross Healthcara Group PLC
Annuadl Report and Accounts 2010
Company Finoncick Statements and Notes

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

6 Share Capital
30 Sept 27 Sept
2010 2009
Number Number
Authorised
Ordinary shares of 1p each 300,000,000 300,000,000
£'m £'m
Ordinary shares of 1p each 3 3
Number Number
Allotted ond fully poid
Ordinary shares of 1p each 188,067,377 188,067,377
£'m £'m
Ordinary shares of 1p each 19 19
7 Dividends Paid and Proposed
The Dwrectors declored an interim dividend of £Nil {2009 £Nil) per share, totalling £NiL (2009 £Nil)
The Directors have decided not to recommend a final dividend for the penod ended 30 September 2010 (2009 £Nl}
8 Related Party Transactions
Transactions with subsidiary undertakings for the period ended 30 September 2010
Movement in Tax relief Interest Amounts
provisions received receved owed to
£'m £'m £'m £'m
Subsidiary undertakings (03) (32) 93 2382
Transactions with subsidiary undertakings for the penod ended 27 September 2009
Movement In Dnadend Interest Amounts
provisions recelved receved owed to
£m £'m £'m £'m
Subsidiory undertakings - {4 5) 113 2324




83 / Southern Cross Hecithcare Group PLC
Annual Report and Accounts 2010
Gther Information

Three-year Record

The following table shows the most recent three-year record under IFRS

Pericd 52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended ended

30 Sept 27 Sept. 28 Sept

2010 2009 2008

£'m £'m £'m

Revenue 9586 9371 8894
Home payroll costs (557 8) (5337) (500¢6)
Home running costs {1199) (112 8) (113 1)
Home EBITDAR? before central costs 2809 2906 2757

Rent

Chorge for rental amounts currently payable (197 0) (187 3) (1711}
Charge for future minimum rental increases (513) (518) (505)
Totol rent (248 3) {239 1) (221 6)
Home EBITDA? before central costs 326 515 541
Central costs {36 8) (308) (26 5)
Adjusted EBITDA? before exceptional central costs and charge for future minimum rental incregses 534 725 781
Exceptional central costs (6 3} - -
Charge for future mesnmimurm rental increoses (51 3) (51 8) {505)
EBITDA (% 2) 207 276
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and subsidiary undertakings (02) {41) (96)
Impairment of freehold assets held for sale (1.1) (77 {4 5)
Depreciation {27 1) {216) {176)
Amaortisation - - in
Onerous contract and reloted impairments (11 5) - -
Operating loss (44 1) (127) (52
Finonce costs (E) (79 (112)
Exceptional finance costs - - (69}
Total finance costs 37 79 (181)
Fincnce income 04 08 G4
Loss before taxation (L7 &) {19 8) (22 9)
Taxation credit/{charge) 107 23 49
Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders (367) 22 1) {180)

1 EBITDAR represents earnings before interest, tox, depreciation, amaortisation, loss on disposal of praperty, plant and equipment ond subsidiary undertakings, impairment

of freehald asseats held for sale, onerous contracts and related impairments, and rent

2 EBITDA represents earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, toss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and subsidiory undertakings, imparrment

of freehald assets held for sale and onerous contracts end related impairments
3 Adjusted EBITDA represents EBITDA ofter odding bock exceptional centrat costs and the charge for future mimimum rental incregses
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